
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

30 March 2022 
 

TO MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the  
Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee on 

Thursday, 7th April, 2022 at 6.30 pm 
in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston PE21 8QR 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 

Membership:  

Chairman: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Anton Dani 
 Councillors Tom Ashton, Alison Austin, Alan Bell, David Brown, 

Viven Edge, Martin Howard, Frank Pickett, Judith Skinner and 
Yvonne Stevens 

 
 

A G E N D A 
PART I – PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes (if any). 
 

B   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting. 
 

C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Monday 4th April 2022 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   MAYORAL SUPPORT                                                                    (Pages 5 - 48) 
 

 A report by the Assistant Director – Governance and Monitoring Officer 
 

2   JOINT SCRUTINY BETWEEN PARTNER COUNCILS IN THE SOUTH EAST 
LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP                              (Pages 49 - 60) 
 

 A report by the Assistant Director – Governance and Monitoring Officer 
 

3   ANNUAL SAFEGUARDING REPORT 2021 - 2022                      (Pages 61 - 76) 
 

 A report by the Anti-Social Behaviour Officer 
 

4   WORK PROGRAMME                                                                  (Pages 77 - 82) 
 

 (For Members to note/discuss the Committee’s current work programme) 
 

 
 

 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Karen Rist 
Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Tel. no: 01205 314226  email: 
karen.rist@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Tel. no: 01205 
314226  email: karen.rist@boston.gov.uk as soon as possible. 
 
 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 

 



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

17 February 2022 

Present: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe (Chairman),  (Vice-Chairman), Councillors 
Tom Ashton, Alison Austin, Frank Pickett, Judith Skinner, and Judy Welbourn. 
 

Councillor Paul Skinner Leader of the Council 
Councillor Jonathan Noble – Portfolio Holder Finance. 
 
In attendance:  
Officers –  
Assistant Director - Assets, Assistant Director - Finance (Deputy S151 Officer) and 
Revenues and Benefits Operations Manager, Democratic Services Officer. 
 
32   APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies for absence were tabled by Councillor Martin Howard with Councillor Judith 
Welbourn substituting. 
Further apologies with no substitute Members were tabled by Councillors Alan Bell, 
David Brown, Anton Dani, Viven Edge and Yvonne Stevens. 
 
33   MINUTES 

 
Committee agreed the minutes of the two previous meetings held on the 16 September 
2021 and the 4 November 2021. 
 
34   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
Councillor Alison Austin declared her role as a Member of Lincolnshire County Council 
in reference to the Budget report tabled. 
 
35   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
No public questions tabled. 
 
36   DRAFT BUDGET REPORT AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 

2022-23 TO 2026-27 
 

The Assistant Director – Finance presented the report to committee providing an 
overview of the key areas for consideration.  
The report outlined the 2022/23 revenue and capital position for the General Fund and 
proposals for the setting of discretionary fees and charges. The purpose of the report is 
to ask Members to recommend the 2022/23 estimates (along with associated Policies 
and Strategies) and council tax level to the Council for formal approval, and for 
Members to be advised on the projected financial position through to 2026/27. 
The year’s Medium Term Financial Strategy was set at a time of continuing significant 
uncertainty, change and financial challenges for local government. Aside from COVID-
19 related pressures, there are issues such as rising inflation, welfare reform, 
uncertainty around Government funding reductions and responding to reductions in 
Central Government funding, (with a greater emphasis on business and housing 
growth).   
 

Page 1

Agenda Item B



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
17 February 2022 
 

There were also significant changes affecting business rates.  Some having 
already been introduced, such as the part-localisation of the regime from April 2013 and 
the 2017 revaluation exercise and others, such as the proposal to further devolve 
business rate incomes to councils are yet to come into full effect. Their impacts include 
the financial effect of growth or contraction in the local rateable value on the Council’s 
resource base, and increased uncertainties surrounding the extent of appeals and the 
ability to accurately forecast income into the future. 
The Council remained aware of the issues surrounding business rate appeals and it 
would be under continuous management by officers with the emphasis on making sure 
there is a reasonable and prudent provision made for successful appeals.  
The estimated business rates deficit for 2022/23 in Table 2 of the report was due mainly 
to the COVID-19 pandemic which has seen unprecedented support to business from 
central government in the form of business rate reliefs, these are funded from monies 
received from central government in 2020/21 and 2021/22 and now released from 
reserves. Many businesses would not re-emerge from the periods of lockdown causing 
a further loss in income, however the full impact of this is still indeterminate.  The 
majority of Government support of business ceased in September 2021 with the closure 
of the majority of its support to businesses including the furlough scheme. 
Compensation for continued Rate Reliefs and income loss are made through Section 31 
grants and are dealt with in the General Fund 
There were new 2022/23 New Homes Bonus (NHB) allocations announced as part of 
the Local Government Finance Settlement for 2022/23 only as far as we are aware. The 
government has added a year of additional grant. As previously announced, the 
2021/22 “in year” allocations will not have future years legacy payments nor has the 
2022/23 allocation. If the scheme was to be continued in its current form next years’ 
payment would reflect just the growth in the previous year. 
Income from fees and charges is an important source of revenue for the Council, 
representing almost 15% of the gross income budgeted in 2022/23. Charges had a 
central role to play in service delivery, raising income, controlling access, responding to 
competition, funding investment and affecting behaviour. 
The Internal Drainage Board (IDB) increases, in total average 8% for2022/23. Post 
2022/23 increases have been estimated at this time, with an increase of 2% p.a. 
assumed. At a time of significant cuts and having to find significant savings annually, the 
Council is liaising with the local Internal Drainage Boards to work towards limiting future 
increases where possible.  
The contribution to reserves was mainly for contributions to the capital reserve. The 
overall contribution was anticipated to reduce significantly across the MTFS period due 
to the New Homes Bonus scheme ending.  
 
Committee comment followed which included: 
 

Questioning any monies lost or projects not undertaken within the Towns Fund the 
Leader of the Council reassured committee that no opportunities had been missed with 
business cases taken forward on submission. 
Referencing car parking income and querying the figures indicated the Portfolio Holder 
confirmed that a decrease in revenue had been expected but levels of revenue were 
getting back to normal.  In response to a question concerning charges when booking 
electronically by Mi. Permit and differing charging levels at Buoys’ Yard car park the 
Portfolio Holder advised he would respond following the meeting and request email 
information for the concerns raised. 

Page 2



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
17 February 2022 

 

Requesting clarification on the repayment of a loan identified in the report, a member 
questioned what the loan was for and the Assistant director – Finance advised the 
information would be sourced from PSPS following the meeting. 
Members voiced concerns noted the replacement tipper vans for 22/23 and the 
predicted costs of £50k/£56k, being mindful the ongoing financial climate and further 
questioned any intent to replace the whole fleet with electronic vehicles, citing the 
increases in services and the additional cost it would have on the Council.    The 
Portfolio Holder advised that any consideration in respect of a move to a full electronic 
fleet would be for Cabinet to discuss and when the time came for such discussions 
matters including the charges for powering the vehicles along with other considerations 
including the service histories and condition of the current fleet. 
A Member asked why the promotion of the Guildhall stated prices for use of the site 
were ‘Price on Application’. Concerns included that such a listing often deterred people 
from making an enquiry and that as a commercial assets to provide revenue for the 
Council, a full pricing structure should be in place with promotional material and 
packages identifying clearly what the building could provide to allow it to compete with 
similar venues not only within Boston but further afield.  
Noting that the Council did not levy a charge for any variation of licences, a Member 
questioned if it was a legal ruling which forbade any levy, or it was the Council’s decision 
not to do so, and if it was then the Council should change its practice.  There was a cost 
involved in any variation of a licence and if permissible it should be charged to provide a 
further revenue field.  
The Assistant Director – General Fund Assets (Lead Officer on the committee) advised 
he felt it was statutory not to charge but would confirm following the meeting. 
 
Members commended the work of the officers for the reporting provided and recognised 
the issues faced in light of the current economic climate and escalating costs of fuel and 
power supplies.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Corporate and Community Committee considered the draft budget and 
Council Tax increase tabling comments to be fed back to Cabinet as a part of the 
consultation prior to the budget’s approval at Full Council on 7th March 2022. 
 
37   BENEFITS VERIFICATION POLICY 

 
It is noted that committee moved into exempt measures to allow them to consider 
Appendix A to this report.  However, whilst committee visually noted the content of the 
exempt appendix it was not questioned nor queried nor referenced in debate and the 
minute below is the opening presentation from the public report with the official 
recommendation, which again is for public record. As such no exempt minute is required 
for this item. 
 
The Revenues and Benefits Manager presented the report advising it proposed the 
introduction of a Benefits Verification Policy from 1 April 2022, to replace the current 
Risk Based Verification Policy. 
The policy defined the standards of verification for evidence required in respect of 
Housing Benefit claims and Local Council Tax Support applications, to help protect 
public funds from fraud and error 

Page 3



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
17 February 2022 
 

It provided a fit for purpose policy, ensuring processes and controls were robust to 
prevent fraud and error, and at the same time it balanced the need for ease of access 
for the customer, and efficiency in the processing and decision making of claims. 
Since 2012 verification of evidence for new Housing Benefit (HB) claims and Council 
Tax Support (CTS) applications made to Boston BC have been administered under a 
Risk Based Verification policy.   
Risk-Based Verification (RBV) had been extended to local authorities on a voluntary 
basis, with clear requirements and expectations set out by Department for Work and 
Pensions (DWP) for authorities that chose to adopt this approach.  
The adoption of RBV allowed for resources to be targeted towards those cases with 
greater risk of fraud and error. The timing for the review was important because an RBV 
policy, once in place for a financial year, could not be changed in-year due to the 
complications this would cause in the Housing Benefit subsidy audit process. 
The Benefits Verification Policy set out a clear and consistent standard for the evidence 
requirements and verification to support Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support new 
claims and changes in circumstances.   
The policy was fit for purpose in the current environment, and provided for a robust 
approach to the verification of HB and CTS claims and changes, protecting public funds 
through helping prevent fraud and error entering the benefit system, and ensures that 
controls were robust to protect Housing Benefit subsidy.  
 
Members fully supported the Policy, agreeing it was well constituted and clear and long 
overdue.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Corporate and Community Committee agreed the recommendations as tabled: 

That Corporate and Community Committee consider the Benefits Verification Policy, and 
Since 2012 verification of evidence for new Housing Benefit (HB) claims and Council 
Tax Support (CTS) applications made to Boston BC have been administered under a 
Risk Based Verification policy. 

 
Risk-Based Verification (RBV) was extended to local authorities on a voluntary basis, 
with clear requirements and expectations set out by Department for Work and Pensions 
(DWP) for authorities that chose to adopt this approach. The adoption of RBV allowed 
for resources to be targeted towards those cases with greater risk of fraud and error.  
 
The timing for this review is important because an RBV policy, once in place for a 
financial year, cannot be changed in-year due to the complications this would cause in 
the Housing Benefit subsidy audit process. 
 
38   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Members noted the work programme for the next scheduled meeting.  No additional 
requests for reporting were tabled. 
 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 7.45 pm 
 

Page 4



 

 
 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: Overview and Scrutiny – Corporate & Community Committee 

DATE: 7 April 2022 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

Mayoral Support 

 

To consider whether the level of support available to the Mayor is 

appropriate, having regard to the changes made as part of the 

transformation programme concluded in 2018 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Nigel Welton, Portfolio Holder for Economic Development and 

Planning 

REPORT OF: 

 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Mark Stinson, Assistant Director for Governance and Monitoring 

Officer 

Mark Stinson, Assistant Director for Governance and Monitoring 

Officer 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: All 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

The Council’s transformation plan, approved by the Council in 2016, included a target for 

financial savings of £90,000 from the Civic and Mayoral budget. A review was undertaken and 

consideration was given to the proposals by this Committee on 4 January 2018 and Cabinet on 

21 February 2018. 

The Chairman of this Committee has asked that Mayoral support be considered by this 

Committee in order to consider whether the same remains adequate and fit for purpose.   

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Committee considers whether it wishes to establish a Task and Finish Group to conduct 

a detailed review of the current level of support to the Mayor. 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees have a legal power to review whatever Council functions 

they consider to be appropriate.  

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

N/A 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 The Council’s transformation plan, approved by the Council in 2016, included a target for 

financial savings of £90,000 from the Civic and Mayoral budget. A review by this Committee 

commenced on 5 October 2017 and a final report was submitted to its meeting held on 4 

January 2018. This Committee resolved to make nine recommendations to the Cabinet, and 

these were duly approved by the Cabinet on 21 February 2018. The recommendations 

made by this Committee at the time are set out in full in the report and minutes of Cabinet 

at Appendix A to this report. 

 

1.2 The Chairman of this Committee has identified some concerns around the level of support 

provided to the Mayor and has asked that a paper be brought to the meeting for 

consideration. 

 

2. REPORT 

 

2.1 Key changes were made to Mayoral support in order to meet the transformation savings 

target. The more significant changes were: 

 

 Withdrawal of the Mayor’s vehicle with an expectation that the Mayor would in 

future drive her/himself to civic functions. Provision was, however, made for access 

to transport in limited circumstances (such as health reasons or where multiple 

events were scheduled for the same day). 

 With the exception of the Macebearer, withdrawal of the services of the Mayor’s 

Officers 

 Limitation of the events for which travelling expenses would be paid (generally 

limited to civic events held in Lincolnshire and not including charitable events).  

 Reduction in allowances paid to the Mayor and Deputy Mayor relating to expenses 

associated with the role (such as hospitality, purchase of event tickets, etc.) 

 

2.2 The Chairman of this Committee has identified concerns in respect of several aspects of 

support to the Mayor – (i) access to the Mayor’s Parlour; (ii) administrative support; and (iii) 

transport. 

 

Page 6



2.3 The Chairman has suggested that, especially given the Council’s application for City status, a 

review of the support to the Chairman is now appropriate, and that consideration could 

now be given to identifying funding for an improved level of Mayoral support. 

 

3. CONCLUSION 

 

3.1 The Mayoral support arrangements were changed in 2018 as part of the Council’s 

transformation programme, driven largely by financial necessity. The arrangements have 

not been subject to further review since that time. Members may therefore consider it 

appropriate to review the effectiveness of the current arrangements. 

 

EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

Mayoral support is specific to Boston Borough Council. 
 
IMPLICATIONS 

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 

None. 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

Whilst this report does not have a direct impact on the Council’s corporate priorities, the office of 

Mayor, also known as First Citizen of the Borough, reflects our history and heritage and is held in 

high esteem.  

STAFFING 

None. 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

The provision of civic arrangements is an executive matter and may be determined by the Cabinet. 

DATA PROTECTION 

None. 

FINANCIAL 

Savings that arose from the review in 2018 were required as part of the transformation 
programme at that time. Those savings have since been incorporated in the Council’s budget. The 
Council’s medium term financial plan makes no provision for additional spending on civic 
arrangements. As such, any increase in on-going revenue expenditure on civic arrangements will 
need to be funded – either through an increase in income or a reduction in spending on other 
services. 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

None. 

 

Page 7



STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

No consultation undertaken at this stage. 

REPUTATION 

The role of the Mayor is of great reputational significance to the Council, and is an office that 

requires a suitable level of support. It is, however, important also to be mindful of the potential 

public reaction to increasing the budget for civic support in the current financial climate. 

CONTRACTS 

None. 

CRIME AND DISORDER 

None. 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

It is important to ensure that support to the Mayor enables the widest possible to access to those 

members who take on the office and may have particular needs. 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

None. 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None. 

LINKS TO 12 MISSIONS IN THE LEVELLING UP WHITE PAPER  

None. 

ACRONYMS 

None. 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Report and minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 21 

February 2018. 

APPENDIX B Report and Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny – 

Corporate & Community Committee meeting held on 4 

January 2018. 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

 

Page 8



CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

 

Name of body Date 

Overview and Scrutiny – Corporate & 

Community Committee 

4 January 2018 

Cabinet 21 February 2018 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Mark Stinson – Assistant Director for Governance 

and Monitoring Officer. 

Signed off by: Christine Marshall – Deputy Chief Executive 

(Corporate Development) & S151 

Approved for publication: Nigel Welton – Portfolio Holder for Economic 

Development and Planning 

 

 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: 21ST FEBRUARY 2018

SUBJECT: TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME - CIVIC REVIEW

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: CLLR MICHAEL BROOKES

REPORT AUTHOR: CORPORATE DIRECTOR

EXEMPT REPORT NO

SUMMARY

The Transformation Programme approved by Full Council in 11th July 2016 identified a
target savings of £90,000 by 2020 from the Civic and Mayoral budget. This presented an
opportunity to review the function to ensure that the Mayoralty is modern and fit for
purpose, whilst respecting the traditions of the historic office of Mayor.

This report provides options for where these savings and modernisation may be made
whilst recognising the historic and heritage role of the First Citizen of the Borough which
is held in high esteem.

The report was first considered by the Corporate and Community Committee at its
meeting on 5 October 2017 when it was agreed to hold an Inquiry Session to consider the
options in more detail.  The outcomes from the Inquiry were considered by the Committee
at its meeting on 4th January and the recommendations are set out within this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the recommendations from the Corporate and Community Committee be agreed,
namely:-

1. As from April 2018 the Mayor would be expected to drive themselves to
engagements using their own vehicle and claim mileage through the Members
Allowance Scheme.  On occasions where it is felt there is a need for the Mayor to
be chauffeured, subject to agreement by the Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer,
for example when there are several events on one day, or access to the venue by
vehicle is difficult, the services of a local taxi firm would be procured.

In circumstances where the Mayor of the day is unable to drive themselves, and
their Mayoress/Consort cannot drive them, for example due to health reasons, in
year costs would be made available for transport to be provided.

B   O   S   T   O   N
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L

Page 11



2. The services of a Macebearer be retained on a minimum hours annual contract for
attendance at Council meetings, civic events and other events where it is
traditional for the Mayor to be robed and the Mace paraded.

3. Travel costs for attendance at events hosted by other civic heads within
Lincolnshire would be approved, other than for charity events.  If the Mayor wishes
to attend such events outside of Lincolnshire they may do so, but at their own cost.
Consideration would be given for travel costs to events outside of Lincolnshire
which were of significant importance or benefit e.g. an event in King’s Lynn or
2020 events, to be agreed by the Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer.

4. As from April 2018 the Mayoral allowances within the revenue budget be reduced
to £4,000 for the Mayor and £1,000 for the Deputy Mayor in line with reduced
attendance at events hosted by other civic heads. The level of allowances be
reviewed in year, subject to the recommendations of the Independent
Remuneration Panel and Council decision on the Scheme of Members’
Allowances for 2018/19.

5. As part of their current review, the Independent Remuneration Panel be requested
to consider the level of special responsibility allowances attached to the position of
Mayor and Deputy Mayor within the Scheme of Members’ Allowances, to
recognise the time commitment and responsibility associated with the roles.

6. The format of the presentation of Service to the Community Awards be reviewed
and the event made bi-annual.

7. The current arrangements for presentation of Past Mayor’s and Past Mayoress’
Badges and Borough Plaques to the retiring Mayor and Mayoress at the AGM be
retained.

8. The arrangements for taking of official Mayoral portraits by a professional
photographer be retained.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The Civic and Mayoral budget was identified as an area in which savings must be made.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

There are several options outlined in the body of the report.

Page 12



REPORT

1. Background

1.1 Boston Borough Council has had the office of Mayor since 1545 when the Borough
was incorporated by the Charter of Henry VIII. The Mayor is the Borough’s First
Citizen and is elected annually by Full Council at the Annual General Meeting. The
Mayor has many roles including;

· To chair meetings of the full council
· To uphold and promote the purposes of the constitution
· To host a number of civic events
· To represent the borough at ceremonial occasions
· To attend a wide range of events and presentations to which he is invited

The Mayor remains apolitical throughout their period of office (unlike directly elected
Mayors).

Under s.3 of the Local Government Act 1972, all local authorities must elect a
Chairman and as Boston Borough Council has been granted a Royal Charter, the
role of Chairman of the Council is referred to as the Mayor.

1.2 The powers that were once invested in the Mayor have diminished over time and
now the role is essentially a ceremonial role where the Mayor as civic leader
represents the Borough of Boston at official functions and civic events. In 2015/16,
the Mayor attended 187 events and in 2016/17 the Mayor attended 192 events.

1.3 When the Mayor is unavailable, these powers and responsibilities are undertaken by
the Deputy Mayor. There is a legal requirement under s.5 of the Local Government
Act 1972 to appoint a Deputy Chairman of the Council – in the case of Boston this is
a Deputy Mayor.

1.4 There are three key areas of visits, representations and presentations that the Mayor
undertakes and these may be categorised as:

(i) Civic and Ceremonial functions within the Borough and include;

· Service to the Community Awards
· May Fair Proclamation
· Mayor’s Sunday
· Battle of Britain Sunday
· Remembrance Sunday
· Freedom Parades

These events bring dignity, status and recognition to those being remembered or
recognised for their contribution to the fabric of life within the Borough.

(ii) Visits to charities, voluntary bodies, schools and local businesses to present
awards, take part in fund raising activities and to promote those organisations’
activities and include;

Page 13



· Local Book celebrations and presentations
· Skirbeck Court Summer Fayre
· Butterfly Hospice Annual Release
· Kirton Primary School Talent Competition

These events are an opportunity for many local people to see their cause, hard work
and achievements to be recognised by the First Citizen and when in full regalia or
simply the chains, the presence of the Mayor often brings an added excitement and
recognition for those attending the event.

(iii) Civic Events outside of the Borough and include other civic engagements
hosted by neighbouring Mayors and include;

· Mayor of Lincoln’s Dinner
· Mayor of Stamford’s Civic Service
· Chairman of Fenland District Council’s Reception
· Mayor of Market Rasen’s Civic Dinner.

These events are a recognition of other civic representatives.

1.5 There are various aspects of expenditure associated with these events and functions
and may include:

· Transport – use of the Mayoral car

· Tickets and ancillaries – purchase of tickets to attend other civic functions
and associated raffles

· Mayor’s Officer – accompanies the Mayor both to drive and robe

· Hospitality – providing for civic events of which the Mayor is host

· Refreshment – for when the Mayor is out of the Borough attending events

1.6 Costs directly relating to the Mayoral Office for the year 2016/17 are set out below:-

Item £
Mayoral Allowances and vehicle running costs including fuel,
maintenance, insurance, road tax.

8,327

Corporate Support Costs – accommodation, utilities, printing, IT, etc. 2,739

Mayor’s Officers – to act as chauffeur and macebearer 16,348

Other staffing costs – part of time allocation for Civic and Member
Services Officer, Democratic Services Manager and Corporate
Director

12,287

Total 39,702

Page 14



1.7 During periods of budget pressures there is naturally an increased public interest in
how the funds of the Council are allocated and by way of example, there have been
9 Freedom of Information requests over the last five years relating to the Civic and
Mayoralty activity, including two in this current financial year so far. These requests
have varied but all seek clarification as to expenditure of events or the details of the
events of which the Mayor attended. These requests are appended at Appendix 1.

1.8 Following consultation on the Transformation Programme, there were some
comments made relating to the review of the Civic Function and these are appended
at Appendix 2.

1.9 The purpose of this review is to maintain the tradition and ceremonial of the office of
Mayor and maintain and build upon the local interaction with schools, charities and
business but reduce duplication of costs and expense associated with out of
Borough activities in order to achieve the Transformation Programme savings.

2. Options

2.1 There are various small changes that would have an impact on the budget but to
achieve the agreed target, more significant changes are also required. These options
have been prepared noting that nationally in England and Wales many councils are
reducing the budgets associated with the First Citizen in order to ensure that the
historic role remains fit for purpose and relevant in today’s changing society.
Examples include Salford and Torbay.

2.2 Mayoral Car

2.2.1 The Mayoral car is 15 years old, has a powerful engine and has an annual budget of
£2,000 (excluding fuel) for repairs and maintenance including servicing, tyres, MOT
and road fund licence. It is considered inefficient in both fuel consumption and green
credentials and each year is subject to increasing costs of repair and maintenance.
The Mayor is chauffeur driven to his engagements (this aspect is considered in
further detail below).

2.2.2 Over the last three years, the total costs of running the car is as follows;

Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Fuel £1,449 £1,215 £1,195

Licences £288 £293 £298

Materials   (servicing,
repairs, MOT etc.)

£1,047 £240 £616

Tyres -- £268 £192

Insurance £770 £997 £821

Total £3,553 £3,013 £3,122

Miles travelled 5830 6164 4971

Page 15



2.2.3 The various councils within Lincolnshire operate slightly different arrangements, the
majority of which do not have a dedicated Mayoral car and use different approaches
to the Mayor (or Chairman) travelling to events;

· NKDC – a contract with Lincolnshire Chauffeur Services for £10,000 per
annum to drive the Chairman to civic engagements and if close to the
Chairman’s home, he will drive himself and claim mileage.

· SKDC – a chauffeur is hired on an ad hoc basis for when required. However,
the family members of the current Chairman drive to events.

· ELDC – The Chairman drives himself and claims mileage. On the few
occasions transport is required, the Chief Executive has authorised the use of
a taxi.

· SHDC – the Chairman usually drives himself and claims mileage. On the few
occasions a vehicle is required, a local taxi firm is used.

· Lincoln City Council – in 2016 leased a vehicle for £8,115.60 over a period of
5 years and has the option to pay the difference in the approximate value of
£60,000, expected to be less than £20,000. This includes annual tax and
servicing.

· West Lindsey District Council – Has a civic vehicle and a Chauffeur is
employed on a zero hours contract basis.

2.2.4 Options

There are various options available for consideration.

Option 1 – Self Drive and Procure a Contract with Local Chauffeur/Taxi
Contract on a Needs Basis

Many councils’ recognise that from time to time the Mayor (Chairman) will have a
need for a car to take them to a function or visit but at the same time balance that
need with practical arrangements whereby the Mayor drives himself to the majority of
local events.

Consideration of a contract arrangement whereby a vehicle would be booked on the
occasions there are functions where the Mayor has need of a driver.

Such examples may be when there are several engagements in one day which
require the Mayor to be engaged continuously from the morning until late evening
and in the interests of health and safety for the Mayor, it would be appropriate for a
driver to chauffeur the Mayor to enable suitable breaks and refreshments to be
taken. Other occasions may be when the distance to travel is considered too far for
the Mayor to undertake the journey.

Page 16



Option 2 – Replace Mayoral Car with a new pool car vehicle

The current pool car fleet is acknowledged as being limited if there are several
officers travelling further than local destinations due to the size of the vehicle and
engine capacity. There has also been a suggestion that if there was an automatic 4
door vehicle, this may further increase the flexibility of the pool car fleet.

Consideration of the lease of a new pool car to replace one of the existing cars. On
occasions when a chauffeur is required the Mayor’s Officer would have priority
booking of the vehicle whilst at all other times it may be used by officers as with the
current pool car system. The Mayor would drive himself to engagements as set out
in option 1.

The sale of the current vehicle and possible disposal of the personalised registration
would make some contribution towards the cost of the replacement vehicle.

Several vehicle manufacturers are currently offering ‘scrappage’ schemes where
older less economical vehicles can be traded in for more than their actual value,
most schemes offer a minimum of £1,000.  This may be an advantageous method
for disposal of the current vehicle, subject to any purchase being in accordance with
the Contract Procedure Rules.

Option 3 – Replace Mayoral Car with a Leased Vehicle

Consideration of a leasing arrangement similar to that of Lincoln City Council.
However, based on current costs and using the example of the car selected by
Lincoln, this would exceed the current allocated annual expenditure and increase
budget costs rather than reduce. Also it is considered that the vehicle would be
underutilised and not generate value for money.

Option 4 – Do nothing

This is not an option as the current car will require additional repairs and
maintenance and will become unreliable and less efficient.

2.3 Mayor’s Officers

2.3.1 The Mayor is supported by two part-time Mayor’s Officers whose extensive
knowledge and experience of the role of the Office of First Citizen always greatly
assist each new Mayor every year. This is separate from the support provided by the
Civic and Member Services Officer.

The Mayor’s Officer duties include the following:

· Parading the Borough’s Mace on key civic occasions
· Robing the Mayor and placing the chains
· Chauffeuring the Mayor
· Providing support and guidance for each new Mayor
· Safeguarding the Mayoral Chains
· Acting as Master of Ceremonies at some civic functions
· Acting as guide in relation to civic regalia

Page 17



2.3.2 Whilst the extensive knowledge and experience of both the Mayor’s Officers is
greatly appreciated by each new Mayor, Councillors and officers involved in civic
functions, the Council must consider as part of the Transformation Programme
whether the level of existing support remains appropriate in the current climate of
budget pressures.

2.3.3 Depending on which option is considered the most appropriate in relation to the
Mayoral Car, there will be an impact on the number of hours required by the Mayor’s
Officer role.

By way of example, if option 1 is selected, there will be no requirement for the
Mayor’s Officer to chauffer the Mayor and hours will be reduced. There will still be a
need for a Mayor’s Officer to discharge some of the remaining responsibilities not
linked directly to chauffeuring the Mayor, for example acting as Macebearer.

If option 2 were preferred, the services of an officer could be procured under a
minimum hours contract for Macebearer duties, chauffeuring on occasions etc. This
would also achieve a reduction in current working hours and employee on-costs.

2.3.4 It should be noted both options above will have an impact on the current terms and
conditions of the Mayor’s Officers and will require formal consultation with those
employees involved as this will involve a change to terms and conditions. The
requisite consultation with affected staff has commenced.

2.4 Functions outside of the Borough

2.4.1 There are many functions that the Mayor attends that take him out of the Borough of
Boston. How much value this brings to the Borough as a whole must be balanced
with the real cost of such commitments.

2.4.2 The presence of the Mayor as the Borough’s First Citizen may raise the profile of the
Borough but is should be noted the role is ceremonial. By way of comparison, the
Mayor does not have the same role as the Leader of the Council in relation to
meeting business, discussing growth opportunities and inward investment.

2.4.3 The functions that the Mayor attends are often those which are attended by other
civic Mayors who do not have decision making authority within their own councils.

2.4.4 Therefore, whilst the profile of the Borough of Boston may be raised by some visits,
the role of developing contacts in relation to the business of the Council is not strictly
what is the outcome of the civic engagement to which the Mayor intends.

2.4.5 If the Mayor or Deputy Mayor particularly wishes to attend an event outside the
Borough, they may attend but at their own expense.

2.4.6 To assist with clarity as to which outside of Borough events the Mayor may attend, it
is proposed to introduced a protocol setting out which type of events will be
supported by the Council with the provision of transport and use of Mayoral
allowance and which will be at the personal choice and expense of the Mayor.

Page 18



2.5 Miscellaneous

2.5.1 There are a number of smaller expenditure items that are incurred presently through
the civic function. These include annual photographs of the Mayor by an external
photographer and presents for retiring Mayors. Whilst there is no suggestion that
these should be stopped, they may be procured in a different way. Again, by way of
example, to have photographs in house and replace presents with a gift up to value
which may be of more value than the formal keepsakes that are procured ay present.

2.5.2 Whilst these items are not likely to generate significant savings, they will refresh the
current approach and generate some smaller savings on an ad hoc basis.

2.6 Mayor and Deputy Mayor Allowances

2.6.1 The annual Mayor’s Allowance is £6,000 and the Deputy Mayor’s allowance is
£1,600. This may be spent on sundry items, such as tickets to other civic events
outside of the Borough. If the number of events outside the Borough are to be
curtailed, it is appropriate to reduce the annual budget as there will be less events
that require tickets etc. A suggested reduction would be to £4,000 for the Mayor’s
Allowance and £1,000 for the Deputy Mayor’s Allowance.

2.7 Service to the Community Awards

2.7.1 The Council has presented Service to the Community Awards since 1980.  In recent
years the number of nominations has reduced year on year and in 2017 only one
was received. The cost of making the award was approximately £700 including scroll
and reception. Noting the lack of nominations it is unclear what value these awards
have within the community.

2.7.2 It is recommended that a review of the Service to the Community Awards be
undertaken and report back to Cabinet with options to support and celebrate the
work of those hard working volunteers within the community.

3. Consideration by Scrutiny Committee and Civic Review Inquiry Session

3.1 This report was considered by the Corporate and Community Committee at its
meeting held on 5 October.

3.2 Following robust debate it was agreed to hold an inquiry session to consider the
options in detail, as set out above, and report back to the Committee.

3.3 The Civic Review Inquiry session was held on 16 November 2017 and was attended
by 12 Members.

3.4 After detailed consideration the outcomes from discussion are set out below:-

Page 19



3.4.1 Mayoral Transport

From April 2018 the Mayor would be expected to drive themselves to engagements
using their own vehicle and claim mileage through the Members’ Allowance Scheme.

On occasions where it is felt there is a need for the Mayor to be chauffeured, subject
to agreement by the Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer,  for example when there
are several events on one day, the services of a local taxi firm be procured.

In circumstances where the Mayor of the day is unable to drive themselves, and their
Mayoress/Consort cannot drive them, for example due to health reasons, in year
costs would be made available for transport to be provided.

3.4.2 Mayor’s Officer

The services of a Macebearer be retained on a minimum hours annual contract for
attendance at Council meetings, civic events and other events where it is traditional
for the Mayor to be robed and the Mace paraded.

Based on time allocation for such events in 2016/17 a contract for a minimum of 60
hours per annum would seem appropriate.  Based on current arrangements the
costs for such a contract would be approximately £700 plus on-costs, subject to
negotiations.

3.4.3 Attendance at Events Hosted by Civic Heads

The travel costs for attendance at events hosted by other civic heads within
Lincolnshire would be approved, other than for charity events.  If the Mayor wished
to attend such events outside of Lincolnshire they may do so, but at their own cost.

Consideration would be given for travel costs to one-off events outside of
Lincolnshire which were of significant importance or benefit, to be agreed by the
Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer.

3.4.4 Mayoral Allowances

Within the revenue budget there is an allowance allocated to the Mayor and Deputy
Mayor to cover expenditure associated with the roles, for example hosting Mayor’s
Sunday and Christmas Reception, hospitality for visitors, tickets for events,
Christmas cards etc.  The current allowance for the Mayor is £6,000 and for the
Deputy Mayor £1,600.

In the options set out in paragraph 2.6 it was proposed to reduce the amount of
allowances by £2,000 for the Mayor and £600 for the Deputy Mayor, to reflect the
reduction in attendance at events outside of Lincolnshire.

Members who attend the Civic Dinner and May Fair Proclamation are charged a set
ticket price, to make the events self-financing.

At the Inquiry it was suggested that Councillors and their guests who attend Mayor’s
Sunday and the Christmas Reception should be invited to make a voluntary

Page 20



contribution towards the costs, for which no charges are currently made. This would
recover some costs of the event, but not preclude on financial grounds those who
wished to attend and support the Mayor.

The current Special Responsibility Allowances (SRA) for the positions of Mayor and
Deputy Mayor only recognise the responsibility of chairing council meetings, not of
representing the town and the time, commitment and resources required to
undertake the roles. The current SRA for the Mayor of £1,344 is significantly less
than that awarded by other Lincolnshire authorities, which range from £3,000 to
£4,400.  Similarly, the current SRA for the Deputy Mayor is £745 compared to the
range across Lincolnshire of £1,200 to £2,200.

It was suggested that the Independent Remuneration Panel be asked to consider the
level of SRA attached to the position of Mayor and Deputy Mayor when undertaking
their current review of all allowances, to recognise the importance of the role and
ensure that no-one would be precluded from accepting the position of Mayor or
Deputy Mayor for financial reasons e.g. having to take unpaid time off work.

In view of the timescale of the report from the IRP, which will not be available prior to
the Cabinet meeting, it is suggested that the level of allowances in the revenue
budget be reviewed in year if necessary.

3.4.5 Miscellaneous Items

(i) Service to the Community Awards

The Council has presented Service to the Community Awards since 1980, the
presentation takes the form of a formal Council meeting.  In recent years the number
of nominations has decreased, with only one being received in 2016.

The view of the Inquiry Session was that the format of the awards should be
reviewed which recognises the contribution made by members of the community, but
in a more relaxed and informal setting, a suggestion was to hold an afternoon tea in
the Guildhall Museum.

(ii) Retiring Gifts for the Mayor and Mayoress

It is traditional for the retiring Mayor and retiring Mayoress to be presented with a
Past Mayor and Past Mayoress’ badge at the Annual Meeting of the Council.  The
cost of this is approximately £700.

In the report to Committee on 5 October a suggestion was made that the badges be
replaced by allowing the Mayor and Mayoress of the day to choose their own gift to a
similar value to the badges, which may have more personal meaning to them.

Members attending the Inquiry Session felt that the current arrangements should be
retained to recognise the positions held by the Mayor and Mayoress.

Similarly, on retiring the Mayor and Deputy Mayor are presented with a Borough
Plaque, for which there is only a small cost of approximately £50.  Members
attending the Inquiry felt that the plaques should continue to be presented, but made
optional to the retiring Mayor and Deputy Mayor.

Page 21



(iii) Official Photographs

A professional photographer is engaged to take the official portrait of the Mayoral
party, and the cost in 2017 was £250.  The Inquiry considered options of having the
photographs taken in-house by the communications team, but felt the professional
standards should be maintained, subject to the discretion of the Mayor of the day.

4. Recommendations

4.1 The outcomes of the Inquiry Session, as set out above, were considered by the
Corporate and Community Committee at its meeting on 4 January, when it was
agreed to forward these as recommendations to Cabinet, subject to minor
amendments as follows:-

3.4.1 Mayoral Transport – In the second paragraph, add a further example of
occasions where it is felt there is a need for the Mayor to be chauffeured:
“where access to a venue by vehicle is difficult”;

3.4.3 Attendance at Events Hosted by Civic Heads – In the second paragraph,
delete the phrase “one-off” and add as an example where consideration would
be given to travel costs to events outside of Lincolnshire of significant
importance or benefit “e.g. an event in King’s Lynn or 2020 events”;

3.4.4 Mayoral Allowances – In the final paragraph, the suggestion be taken forward
that the Independent Remuneration Panel be asked to consider the level of
Special Responsibility Allowances attached to the position of Mayor and
Deputy Mayor when undertaking their current review of all allowances;

3.4.5 (i) – Second paragraph, that the Service to the Community Awards be made a
bi-annual event.

5. CONCLUSION

A review of the civic and mayoral functions was identified as a project within the
transformation programme to seek to achieve savings year on year culminating in a total of
£90,000 by 2020.

The report sets out options to achieve these savings, but also maintain the historic role and
traditions associated with the Mayoralty.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The costs of the Mayoral Office for 2016/17 totalled £39,700, including officer time,
transport, allowances and support costs.

As set out in the body of the report, savings would be achieved by disposing of the Mayoral
vehicle, restricting the times transport and Mayor’s Officer support would be provided for
the Mayor, reducing Mayoral allowances and the review of ad hoc arrangements.

Page 22



LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal functions arising from this report. The provision of the civic
arrangements is an executive matter and may be determined by the Cabinet.

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None

CONSULTATION

Corporate and Community Committee on 5 October and 4 January
Inquiry Session on 16 November

APPENDICES

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: -

APPENDIX 1 Freedom of Information requests relating to the Mayor

APPENDIX 2 Consultation responses referencing the Mayor and Civic arrangements

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT

Corporate and Community Committee – 5 October 2017
Inquiry Session – 16 November 2017
Corporate and Community Committee – 4 January 2018

Page 23



Appendix 1

FOI Requests relating to the Mayoralty or Civic Function from 2012/13 to 2017/18

1. Under freedom of information legislation, I am seeking the following information:

· The total cost the council of all civic receptions held since July 1, 2013
· Details of each civic reception, including date, individual cost, purpose location, how

many guests attended, how many councillors attended and what the money spent
was used to purchase.

2. Under the Freedom of information Act please could you supply a list of official
engagements attended by the Mayor of Boston since the beginning of May 2015.

3. Information regarding who paid for the mayors recent party?

4. The Christmas party hosted by/for the Mayor was financed by the Mayors Allowance,
where does the Mayors Allowance come from, how much did the party cost ?

5. I am seeking information about any remuneration or benefits-in-kind received by the
Mayor of your council. This might include such things, for example, as use of a car
and/or driver, expenses etc.

Please could you provide an itemised list of these benefits and their cost equivalent,
broken down annually for the past three years up to the time this request is
answered. The years may be financial or calendar, whichever is convenient, but
please keep them consistent.

If the use of a car is one of these benefits please can you specify the make and
model.

6. I would like to submit a request for information under the Freedom of Information Act
2000.  I would like to know the total budget for the office of the chairman of
the council/civic mayor for the last five years.

I would like to know the full budget for the office and If possible, I would like a
breakdown of costs under the following headings:

· Transport
· Entertaining
· Out of pocket expenses
· Any other expenditure

If this is not possible, a single figure for the spend each year would suffice.

7. How many visits were made to your area by the core royal family (Queen Elizabeth
II, the Duke of Edinburgh, Prince Charles, Princess Anne, Prince Andrew, Prince
Edward, Prince William, the Duchess of Cambridge and Prince Harry) and how much
did these visits cost your council?

Page 24



8. When did the council last have the following ceremonial items professionally valued?
a) Ceremonial Mace b) Lord Mayor’s Chains c) Lord Mayor’s Consort’s Chains d)
Lord Mayor’s badge e) Lord Mayor’s Consort’s Badge

How much are these items currently valued at for the purposes of insurance? a)
Ceremonial Mace b) Lord Mayor’s Chains c) Lord Mayor’s Consort’s Chains d) Lord
Mayor’s badge e) Lord Mayor’s Consort’s Badge

How much has the council paid to insure these items in the current financial year
(2017-18)? a) Ceremonial Mace b) Lord Mayor’s Chains c) Lord Mayor’s Consort’s
Chains d) Lord Mayor’s badge e) Lord Mayor’s Consort’s Badge

How much did the council pay to have these items professionally cleaned on the last
occasion that they were professionally cleaned? a) Ceremonial Mace b) Lord
Mayor’s Chains c) Lord Mayor’s Consort’s Chains d) Lord Mayor’s badge e) Lord
Mayor’s Consort’s Badge

9. I would like to know the total budget for the office of the chairman of the council for
the last five years.

I would like to know the full budget for the office and If possible, I would like a
breakdown of costs under the following headings:

· Transport
· Entertaining
· Out of pocket expenses
· Any other expenditure

If this is not possible, a single figure for the spend each year would suffice.

Page 25



Appendix 2

Transformation Programme Consultation Responses for Civic Review

TP18 – Civic Review  (Mayor)

1 No Mayor therefore saving money on cars and insurance.

2. Get rid of Mayors they are waste. Stop paying benefits to layabout stop paying tax
credits to encourages people to work part time. Close all libraries, put up parking
charges.  Get rid of civil servants who are not needed.  To many pen pushers.  Stop
wasting paper sending out silly circulars like this one.  The council needs to think before
it spends.  30mph speed posting the flash up , a waste of time and money no one takes
any notice of them after all why would any one they don’t take a photo.  , you don’t get a
penalty.  A total waste off our tax payers money, could mention loads of waste.   Also
why are there so many councillor to do a  job that can be done by one.  Plus why do
farmers get subsidised by EU

Page 26



1

FINANCE PROFORMA
BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES
(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS)

FROM: RACHEL CHATTERTON

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED

REPORT: CIVIC REVIEW
REPORT DATE: CABINET - 21ST FEBRUARY 2018

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Macebearer changes -18,263 -18,753 -18,976 -19,144 -19,336
Mayoral Car -1,408 -1,408 -1,408 -1,408 -1,408
Mayor allowance -2,600 -2,600 -2,600 -2,600 -2,600

Annual revenue saving -22,271 -22,761 -22,984 -23,152 -23,344

Funding required: Nil Considered by:
CABINET

Date:
21.02.2018

Total capital cost Nil Enter committee
here:

Revenue cost Enter Council or
Cabinet here:
CABINET
21ST FEBRUARY

2018

Financial Services Comments
Any potential costs arising from the implementation of this report will be contained
within existing budgets

Risk

Procurement
n/a

Value for Money Efficiency
Lower service costs if recommendations approved

This FP is valid for 3 months
from FP date

If this FP is no longer required please
advise Finance

If there are changes to the original report
it may invalidate this document, it must
be reviewed by Finance.

Page 27



55 TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME – CIVIC REVIEW

DECISION

1. As from June 2018 the Mayor would be expected to drive
themselves to engagements using their own vehicle and
claim mileage through the Members Allowance Scheme.  On
occasions where it is felt there is a need for the Mayor to be
chauffeured, subject to agreement by the Chief Executive or
Monitoring Officer, for example when there are several
events on one day, or access to the venue by vehicle is
difficult, the services of a local taxi firm would be procured.

In circumstances where the Mayor of the day is unable to
drive themselves, and their Mayoress/Consort cannot drive
them, for example due to health reasons, in year costs would
be made available for transport to be provided.

2. The services of a Macebearer be retained on a minimum
hours annual contract for attendance at Council meetings,
civic events and other events where it is traditional for the
Mayor to be robed and the Mace paraded.

3. Travel costs for attendance at events hosted by other civic
heads within Lincolnshire would be approved, other than for
charity events.  If the Mayor wishes to attend such events
outside of Lincolnshire they may do so, but at their own cost.
Consideration would be given for travel costs to events
outside of Lincolnshire which were of significant importance
or benefit e.g. an event in King’s Lynn or 2020 events, to be
agreed by the Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer.

4. As from April 2018 the Mayoral allowances within the
revenue budget be reduced to £4,000 for the Mayor and
£1,000 for the Deputy Mayor in line with reduced attendance
at events hosted by other civic heads. The level of
allowances be reviewed in year, subject to the
recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel
and Council decision on the Scheme of Members’
Allowances for 2018/19.

5. As part of their current review, the Independent
Remuneration Panel be requested to consider the level of
special responsibility allowances attached to the position of
Mayor and Deputy Mayor within the Scheme of Members’
Allowances, to recognise the time commitment and
responsibility associated with the roles.

Portfolio
Holder

and
Officer

Cllr
Brookes

MS

Page 28



6. The format of the presentation of Service to the Community
Awards be reviewed.

7. The current arrangements for presentation of Past Mayor’s
and Past Mayoress’ Badges and Borough Plaques to the
retiring Mayor and Mayoress at the AGM be retained.

8. The arrangements for taking of official Mayoral portraits by
a professional photographer be retained.

9. That a further report be submitted to Cabinet in six months
to review the impact of the changes on the workings and
dignity of the Mayoral office.

REASON FOR DECISION

Councillor Michael Brookes introduced a report by the Corporate Director setting out
options for a review of the civic and Mayoral function.

The report stated that Transformation Programme approved by Council in July 2016
identified a target savings of £90,000 by 2020 from the civic and mayoral budgets.
This had presented an opportunity to review the function to ensure that the Mayoralty
was modern and fit for purpose, whilst respecting the traditions of the historic office
of Mayor.

A thorough process had been undertaken to formulate recommendations which
treated the situation sympathetically, whilst recognising the need for savings to be
made in line with other service areas.  All aspects within the mayoral and civic
function had been considered from staffing implications to smaller items such as
arrangements for official photographs and comparisons with the service provided by
other Lincolnshire authorities for their civic heads.

Options set out in the report in respect of transport, Mayor’s Officers, engagements
and miscellaneous items had been considered by the Corporate and Community
Committee at its meeting on 5 October 2017.  Following robust debate it had been
agreed to hold an inquiry session to consider the options in details and report back
to the Committee.  The Civic Review inquiry session took place on 16 November
2017 and was attended by 12 members.  After detailed consideration, the outcomes
from discussion, as set out in section 3 of the report, were referred back to the
meeting of the Corporate and Community Committee held on 4 January 2018, in
summary:-

· Mayor to self drive from April 2018, other than in exceptional circumstances;
· The services of a Macebearer to be retained on a minimum hours contract for

attendance at Council meetings and events where it was traditional for the
Mayor to be robed and Mace paraded;

Page 29



· Travel costs for attendance at events hosted by civic heads within
Lincolnshire would be approved, other than for charity events, and
consideration would be given for travel costs for events outside of Lincolnshire
which were of significant importance or benefit;

· Mayoral allowances within the revenue budget to be reduced;
· A review to be undertaken of the format for the Service to the Community

Awards; and
· Arrangements for the presentation of Past Mayor’s and Past Mayoress’

Badges and for Mayor’s official photographs to be retained.

When introducing the report the Portfolio Holder stated that the date in
recommendation one should now read June 2018 and in recommendation six the
words ‘and the event made bi-annual’ should be deleted.

At the meeting of the Corporate and Community Committee it was agreed to support
the recommendations subject to minor amendments.

The purpose of the review was to maintain the tradition and ceremonial office of the
Mayor and maintain and build upon local interaction with schools, charities and
businesses, but reduce duplication of costs and expense associated with out of
Borough activities in order to achieve the Transformation Programme savings.

Page 30



Appendix B

REPORT TO: CORPORATE & COMMUNITY COMMITTEE

DATE: 4TH JANUARY 2018

SUBJECT: TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME - CIVIC REVIEW

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: CLLR MICHAEL BROOKES

REPORT AUTHOR: CORPORATE DIRECTOR

EXEMPT REPORT NO

SUMMARY

The Transformation Programme approved by Full Council in 11th July 2016 identified a
target savings of £90,000 by 2020 from the Civic and Mayoral budget. This presented an
opportunity to review the function to ensure that the Mayoralty is modern and fit for
purpose, whilst respecting the traditions of the historic office of Mayor.

This report provides options for where these savings and modernisation may be made
whilst recognising the historic and heritage role of the First Citizen of the Borough which
is held in high esteem.

The report was previously considered by the Committee at its meeting on 5 October when
it was agreed to hold an Inquiry Session to consider the options in more detail.  The
outcomes from the Inquiry are set out within the report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Committee considers the options set out in the report, together with the
outcomes from the Civic Review Inquiry Session as set out in section 3.4 of the report,
and makes recommendations to the Cabinet.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The Civic and Mayoral budget was identified as an area in which savings must be made.

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED

There are several options outlined in the body of the report.

B   O   S   T   O   N
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L

Page 31



REPORT

1. Background

1.1 Boston Borough Council has had the office of Mayor since 1545 when the Borough
was incorporated by the Charter of Henry VIII. The Mayor is the Borough’s First
Citizen and is elected annually by Full Council at the Annual General Meeting. The
Mayor has many roles including;

· To chair meetings of the full council
· To uphold and promote the purposes of the constitution
· To host a number of civic events
· To represent the borough at ceremonial occasions
· To attend a wide range of events and presentations to which he is invited

The Mayor remains apolitical throughout their period of office (unlike directly elected
Mayors).

Under s.3 of the Local Government Act 1972, all local authorities must elect a
Chairman and as Boston Borough Council has been granted a Royal Charter, the
role of Chairman of the Council is referred to as the Mayor.

1.2 The powers that were once invested in the Mayor have diminished over time and
now the role is essentially a ceremonial role where the Mayor as civic leader
represents the Borough of Boston at official functions and civic events. In 2015/16,
the Mayor attended 187 events and in 2016/17 the Mayor attended 192 events.

1.3 When the Mayor is unavailable, these powers and responsibilities are undertaken by
the Deputy Mayor. There is a legal requirement under s.5 of the Local Government
Act 1972 to appoint a Deputy Chairman of the Council – in the case of Boston this is
a Deputy Mayor.

1.4 There are three key areas of visits, representations and presentations that the Mayor
undertakes and these may be categorised as:

(i) Civic and Ceremonial functions within the Borough and include;

· Service to the Community Awards
· May Fair Proclamation
· Mayor’s Sunday
· Battle of Britain Sunday
· Remembrance Sunday
· Freedom Parades

These events bring dignity, status and recognition to those being remembered or
recognised for their contribution to the fabric of life within the Borough.

(ii) Visits to charities, voluntary bodies, schools and local businesses to present
awards, take part in fund raising activities and to promote those organisations’
activities and include;

Page 32



· Local Book celebrations and presentations
· Skirbeck Court Summer Fayre
· Butterfly Hospice Annual Release
· Kirton Primary School Talent Competition

These events are an opportunity for many local people to see their cause, hard work
and achievements to be recognised by the First Citizen and when in full regalia or
simply the chains, the presence of the Mayor often brings an added excitement and
recognition for those attending the event.

(iii) Civic Events outside of the Borough and include other civic engagements
hosted by neighbouring Mayors and include;

· Mayor of Lincoln’s Dinner
· Mayor of Stamford’s Civic Service
· Chairman of Fenland District Council’s Reception
· Mayor of Market Rasen’s Civic Dinner.

These events are a recognition of other civic representatives.

1.5 There are various aspects of expenditure associated with these events and functions
and may include:

· Transport – use of the Mayoral car

· Tickets and ancillaries – purchase of tickets to attend other civic functions
and associated raffles

· Mayor’s Officer – accompanies the Mayor both to drive and robe

· Hospitality – providing for civic events of which the Mayor is host

· Refreshment – for when the Mayor is out of the Borough attending events

1.6 Costs directly relating to the Mayoral Office for the year 2016/17 are set out below:-

Item £
Mayoral Allowances and vehicle running costs including fuel,
maintenance, insurance, road tax.

8327.28

Corporate Support Costs – accommodation, utilities, printing, IT, etc. 2739.11

Mayor’s Officers – to act as chauffeur and macebearer 16347.73

Other staffing costs – part of time allocation for Civic and Member
Services Officer, Democratic Services Manager and Corporate
Director

12287.38

Total 39,701.50

Page 33



1.7 During periods of budget pressures there is naturally an increased public interest in
how the funds of the Council are allocated and by way of example, there have been
9 Freedom of Information requests over the last five years relating to the Civic and
Mayoralty activity, including two in this current financial year so far. These requests
have varied but all seek clarification as to expenditure of events or the details of the
events of which the Mayor attended. These requests are appended at Appendix 1.

1.8 Following consultation on the Transformation Programme, there were some
comments made relating to the review of the Civic Function and these are appended
at Appendix 2.

1.9 The purpose of this review is to maintain the tradition and ceremonial of the office of
Mayor and maintain and build upon the local interaction with schools, charities and
business but reduce duplication of costs and expense associated with out of
Borough activities in order to achieve the Transformation Programme savings.

2. Options

2.1 There are various small changes that would have an impact on the budget but to
achieve the agreed target, more significant changes are also required. These options
have been prepared noting that nationally in England and Wales many councils are
reducing the budgets associated with the First Citizen in order to ensure that the
historic role remains fit for purpose and relevant in today’s changing society.
Examples include Salford and Torbay.

2.2 Mayoral Car

2.2.1 The Mayoral car is 15 years old, has a powerful engine and has an annual budget of
£2,000 (excluding fuel) for repairs and maintenance including servicing, tyres, MOT
and road fund licence. It is considered inefficient in both fuel consumption and green
credentials and each year is subject to increasing costs of repair and maintenance.
The Mayor is chauffeur driven to his engagements (this aspect is considered in
further detail below).

2.2.2 Over the last three years, the total costs of running the car is as follows;

Description 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Fuel 1448.60 1215.06 1039.75

Licences 287.50 292.50 297.50

Materials   (servicing,
repairs, MOT etc.)

1047.25 240.00 616.28

Tyres -- 268.38 191.70

Insurance 770.00 997.35 821.25

Total £3553.35 £3013.29 £2966.48

Miles travelled 5,830 6,164 4,971

Page 34



2.2.3 The various councils within Lincolnshire operate slightly different arrangements, the
majority of which do not have a dedicated Mayoral car and use different approaches
to the Mayor (or Chairman) travelling to events;

· NKDC – a contract with Lincolnshire Chauffeur Services for £10,000 per
annum to drive the Chairman to civic engagements and if close to the
Chairman’s home, he will drive himself and claim mileage.

· SKDC – a chauffeur is hired on an ad hoc basis for when required. However,
the family members of the current Chairman drive to events.

· ELDC – The Chairman drives himself and claims mileage. On the few
occasions transport is required, the Chief Executive has authorised the use of
a taxi.

· SHDC – the Chairman usually drives himself and claims mileage. On the few
occasions a vehicle is required, a local taxi firm is used.

· Lincoln City Council – in 2016 leased a vehicle for £8,115.60 over a period of
5 years and has the option to pay the difference in the approximate value of
£60,000, expected to be less than £20,000. This includes annual tax and
servicing.

· West Lindsey District Council – Has a civic vehicle and a Chauffeur is
employed on a zero hours contract basis.

2.2.4 Options

There are various options available for consideration.

Option 1 – Self Drive and Procure a Contract with Local Chauffeur/Taxi
Contract on a Needs Basis

Many councils’ recognise that from time to time the Mayor (Chairman) will have a
need for a car to take them to a function or visit but at the same time balance that
need with practical arrangements whereby the Mayor drives himself to the majority of
local events.

Consideration of a contract arrangement whereby a vehicle would be booked on the
occasions there are functions where the Mayor has need of a driver.

Such examples may be when there are several engagements in one day which
require the Mayor to be engaged continuously from the morning until late evening
and in the interests of health and safety for the Mayor, it would be appropriate for a
driver to chauffeur the Mayor to enable suitable breaks and refreshments to be
taken. Other occasions may be when the distance to travel is considered too far for
the Mayor to undertake the journey.

Page 35



Option 2 – Replace Mayoral Car with a new pool car vehicle

The current pool car fleet is acknowledged as being limited if there are several
officers travelling further than local destinations due to the size of the vehicle and
engine capacity. There has also been a suggestion that if there was an automatic 4
door vehicle, this may further increase the flexibility of the pool car fleet.

Consideration of the lease of a new pool car to replace one of the existing cars. On
occasions when a chauffeur is required the Mayor’s Officer would have priority
booking of the vehicle whilst at all other times it may be used by officers as with the
current pool car system. The Mayor would drive himself to engagements as set out
in option 1.

The sale of the current vehicle and possible disposal of the personalised registration
would make some contribution towards the cost of the replacement vehicle.

Several vehicle manufacturers are currently offering ‘scrappage’ schemes where
older less economical vehicles can be traded in for more than their actual value,
most schemes offer a minimum of £1,000.  This may be an advantageous method
for disposal of the current vehicle, subject to any purchase being in accordance with
the Contract Procedure Rules.

Option 3 – Replace Mayoral Car with a Leased Vehicle

Consideration of a leasing arrangement similar to that of Lincoln City Council.
However, based on current costs and using the example of the car selected by
Lincoln, this would exceed the current allocated annual expenditure and increase
budget costs rather than reduce. Also it is considered that the vehicle would be
underutilised and not generate value for money.

Option 4 – Do nothing

This is not an option as the current car will require additional repairs and
maintenance and will become unreliable and less efficient.

2.3 Mayor’s Officers

2.3.1 The Mayor is supported by two part-time Mayor’s Officers whose extensive
knowledge and experience of the role of the Office of First Citizen always greatly
assist each new Mayor every year. This is separate from the support provided by the
Civic and Member Services Officer.

The Mayor’s Officer duties include the following:

· Parading the Borough’s Mace on key civic occasions
· Robing the Mayor and placing the chains
· Chauffeuring the Mayor
· Providing support and guidance for each new Mayor
· Safeguarding the Mayoral Chains
· Acting as Master of Ceremonies at some civic functions
· Acting as guide in relation to civic regalia

Page 36



2.3.2 Whilst the extensive knowledge and experience of both the Mayor’s Officers is
greatly appreciated by each new Mayor, Councillors and officers involved in civic
functions, the Council must consider as part of the Transformation Programme
whether the level of existing support remains appropriate in the current climate of
budget pressures.

2.3.3 Depending on which option is considered the most appropriate in relation to the
Mayoral Car, there will be an impact on the number of hours required by the Mayor’s
Officer role.

By way of example, if option 1 is selected, there will be no requirement for the
Mayor’s Officer to chauffer the Mayor and hours will be reduced. There will still be a
need for a Mayor’s Officer to discharge some of the remaining responsibilities not
linked directly to chauffeuring the Mayor, for example acting as Macebearer.

If option 2 were preferred, the services of an officer could be procured under a
minimum hours contract for Macebearer duties, chauffeuring on occasions etc. This
would also achieve a reduction in current working hours and employee on-costs.

2.3.4 It should be noted both options above will have an impact on the current terms and
conditions of the Mayor’s Officers and will require formal consultation with those
employees involved as this will involve a change to terms and conditions. The
requisite consultation with affected staff has commenced.

2.4 Functions outside of the Borough

2.4.1 There are many functions that the Mayor attends that take him out of the Borough of
Boston. How much value this brings to the Borough as a whole must be balanced
with the real cost of such commitments.

2.4.2 The presence of the Mayor as the Borough’s First Citizen may raise the profile of the
Borough but is should be noted the role is ceremonial. By way of comparison, the
Mayor does not have the same role as the Leader of the Council in relation to
meeting business, discussing growth opportunities and inward investment.

2.4.3 The functions that the Mayor attends are often those which are attended by other
civic Mayors who do not have decision making authority within their own councils.

2.4.4 Therefore, whilst the profile of the Borough of Boston may be raised by some visits,
the role of developing contacts in relation to the business of the Council is not strictly
what is the outcome of the civic engagement to which the Mayor intends.

2.4.5 If the Mayor or Deputy Mayor particularly wishes to attend an event outside the
Borough, they may attend but at their own expense.

2.4.6 To assist with clarity as to which outside of Borough events the Mayor may attend, it
is proposed to introduced a protocol setting out which type of events will be
supported by the Council with the provision of transport and use of Mayoral
allowance and which will be at the personal choice and expense of the Mayor.

Page 37



2.5 Miscellaneous

2.5.1 There are a number of smaller expenditure items that are incurred presently through
the civic function. These include annual photographs of the Mayor by an external
photographer and presents for retiring Mayors. Whilst there is no suggestion that
these should be stopped, they may be procured in a different way. Again, by way of
example, to have photographs in house and replace presents with a gift up to value
which may be of more value than the formal keepsakes that are procured ay present.

2.5.2 Whilst these items are not likely to generate significant savings, they will refresh the
current approach and generate some smaller savings on an ad hoc basis.

2.6 Mayor and Deputy Mayor Allowances

2.6.1 The annual Mayor’s Allowance is £6,000 and the Deputy Mayor’s allowance is
£1,600. This may be spent on sundry items, such as tickets to other civic events
outside of the Borough. If the number of events outside the Borough are to be
curtailed, it is appropriate to reduce the annual budget as there will be less events
that require tickets etc. A suggested reduction would be to £4,000 for the Mayor’s
Allowance and £1,000 for the Deputy Mayor’s Allowance.

2.7 Service to the Community Awards

2.7.1 The Council has presented Service to the Community Awards since 1980.  In recent
years the number of nominations has reduced year on year and in 2017 only one
was received. The cost of making the award was approximately £700 including scroll
and reception. Noting the lack of nominations it is unclear what value these awards
have within the community.

2.7.2 It is recommended that a review of the Service to the Community Awards be
undertaken and report back to Cabinet with options to support and celebrate the
work of those hard working volunteers within the community.

3. Civic Review Inquiry Session

3.1 This report was previously considered by the Corporate and Community Committee
at its meeting held on 6 October.

3.2 Following robust debate it was agreed to hold an inquiry session to consider the
options in detail, as set out above, and report back to the Committee.

3.3 The Civic Review Inquiry session was held on 16 November 2017 and was attended
by 12 Members.

3.4 After detailed consideration the outcomes from discussion are set out below for the
Committee’s deliberation:-

Page 38



3.4.1 Mayoral Transport

From April 2018 the Mayor would be expected to drive themselves to engagements
using their own vehicle and claim mileage through the Members’ Allowance Scheme.

On occasions where it is felt there is a need for the Mayor to be chauffeured, subject
to agreement by the Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer,  for example when there
are several events on one day, the services of a local taxi firm be procured.

In circumstances where the Mayor of the day is unable to drive themselves, and their
Mayoress/Consort cannot drive them, for example due to health reasons, in year
costs would be made available for transport to be provided.

3.4.2 Mayor’s Officer

The services of a Macebearer be retained on a minimum hours annual contract for
attendance at Council meetings, civic events and other events where it is traditional
for the Mayor to be robed and the Mace paraded.

Based on time allocation for such events in 2016/17 a contract for a minimum of 60
hours per annum would seem appropriate.  Based on current arrangements the
costs for such a contract would be approximately £700 plus on-costs, subject to
negotiations.

3.4.3 Attendance at Events Hosted by Civic Heads

The travel costs for attendance at events hosted by other civic heads within
Lincolnshire would be approved, other than for charity events.  If the Mayor wished
to attend such events outside of Lincolnshire they may do so, but at their own cost.

Consideration would be given for travel costs to one-off events outside of
Lincolnshire which were of significant importance or benefit, to be agreed by the
Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer.

3.4.4 Mayoral Allowances

Within the revenue budget there is an allowance allocated to the Mayor and Deputy
Mayor to cover expenditure associated with the roles, for example hosting Mayor’s
Sunday and Christmas Reception, hospitality for visitors, tickets for events,
Christmas cards etc.  The current allowance for the Mayor is £6,000 and for the
Deputy Mayor £1,600.

In the options set out in paragraph 2.6 it was proposed to reduce the amount of
allowances by £2,000 for the Mayor and £600 for the Deputy Mayor, to reflect the
reduction in attendance at events outside of Lincolnshire.

Members who attend the Civic Dinner and May Fair Proclamation are charged a set
ticket price, to make the events self-financing.

At the Inquiry it was suggested that Councillors and their guests who attend Mayor’s
Sunday and the Christmas Reception should be invited to make a voluntary

Page 39



contribution towards the costs, for which no charges are currently made. This would
recover some costs of the event, but not preclude on financial grounds those who
wished to attend and support the Mayor.

The current Special Responsibility Allowances (SRA) for the positions of Mayor and
Deputy Mayor only recognise the responsibility of chairing council meetings, not of
representing the town and the time, commitment and resources required to
undertake the roles. The current SRA for the Mayor of £1,344 is significantly less
than that awarded by other Lincolnshire authorities, which range from £3,000 to
£4,400.  Similarly, the current SRA for the Deputy Mayor is £745 compared to the
range across Lincolnshire of £1,200 to £2,200.

It was suggested that the Independent Remuneration Panel be asked to consider the
level of SRA attached to the position of Mayor and Deputy Mayor when undertaking
their current review of all allowances, to recognise the importance of the role and
ensure that no-one would be precluded from accepting the position of Mayor or
Deputy Mayor for financial reasons e.g. having to take unpaid time off work.

3.4.5 Miscellaneous Items

(i) Service to the Community Awards

The Council has presented Service to the Community Awards since 1980, the
presentation takes the form of a formal Council meeting.  In recent years the number
of nominations has decreased, with only one being received in 2016.

The view of the Inquiry Session was that the format of the awards should be
reviewed which recognises the contribution made by members of the community, but
in a more relaxed and informal setting, a suggestion was to hold an afternoon tea in
the Guildhall Museum.

(ii) Retiring Gifts for the Mayor and Mayoress

It is traditional for the retiring Mayor and retiring Mayoress to be presented with a
Past Mayor and Past Mayoress’ badge at the Annual Meeting of the Council.  The
cost of this is approximately £700.

In the report to Committee on 5 October a suggestion was made that the badges be
replaced by allowing the Mayor and Mayoress of the day to choose their own gift to a
similar value to the badges, which may have more personal meaning to them.

Members attending the Inquiry Session felt that the current arrangements should be
retained to recognise the positions held by the Mayor and Mayoress.

Similarly, on retiring the Mayor and Deputy Mayor are presented with a Borough
Plaque, for which there is only a small cost of approximately £50.  Members
attending the Inquiry felt that the plaques should continue to be presented, but made
optional to the retiring Mayor and Deputy Mayor.

Page 40



(iii) Official Photographs

A professional photographer is engaged to take the official portrait of the Mayoral
party, and the cost in 2017 was £250.  The Inquiry considered options of having the
photographs taken in-house by the communications team, but felt the professional
standards should be maintained, subject to the discretion of the Mayor of the day.

3. CONCLUSION

A review of the civic and mayoral functions was identified as a project within the
transformation programme to seek to achieve savings year on year culminating in a total of
£90,000 by 2020.

The report sets out options to achieve these savings, but also maintain the historic role and
traditions associated with the Mayoralty.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The costs of the Mayoral Office for 2016/17 totalled £39,700, including officer time,
transport, allowances and support costs.

As set out in the body of the report, savings would be achieved by disposing of the Mayoral
vehicle and sale of the personalised number plate, restricting the times transport and
Mayor’s Officer support would be provided for the Mayor, reducing Mayoral allowances and
the review of ad hoc arrangements.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal functions arising from this report. The provision of the civic
arrangements is an executive matter and may be determined by the Cabinet.

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None

CONSULTATION

None.

APPENDICES

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: -

APPENDIX 1 Freedom of Information requests relating to the Mayor
APPENDIX 2 Consultation responses referencing the Mayor and Civic arrangements

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT

Corporate and Community Committee – 5 October 2017
Inquiry Session – 16 November 2017

Page 41



Appendix 1

FOI Requests relating to the Mayoralty or Civic Function from 2012/13 to 2017/18

1. Under freedom of information legislation, I am seeking the following information:

· The total cost the council of all civic receptions held since July 1, 2013
· Details of each civic reception, including date, individual cost, purpose location, how

many guests attended, how many councillors attended and what the money spent
was used to purchase.

2. Under the Freedom of information Act please could you supply a list of official
engagements attended by the Mayor of Boston since the beginning of May 2015.

3. Information regarding who paid for the mayors recent party?

4. The Christmas party hosted by/for the Mayor was financed by the Mayors Allowance,
where does the Mayors Allowance come from, how much did the party cost ?

5. I am seeking information about any remuneration or benefits-in-kind received by the
Mayor of your council. This might include such things, for example, as use of a car
and/or driver, expenses etc.

Please could you provide an itemised list of these benefits and their cost equivalent,
broken down annually for the past three years up to the time this request is
answered. The years may be financial or calendar, whichever is convenient, but
please keep them consistent.

If the use of a car is one of these benefits please can you specify the make and
model.

6. I would like to submit a request for information under the Freedom of Information Act
2000.  I would like to know the total budget for the office of the chairman of
the council/civic mayor for the last five years.

I would like to know the full budget for the office and If possible, I would like a
breakdown of costs under the following headings:

· Transport
· Entertaining
· Out of pocket expenses
· Any other expenditure

If this is not possible, a single figure for the spend each year would suffice.

7. How many visits were made to your area by the core royal family (Queen Elizabeth
II, the Duke of Edinburgh, Prince Charles, Princess Anne, Prince Andrew, Prince
Edward, Prince William, the Duchess of Cambridge and Prince Harry) and how much
did these visits cost your council?

Page 42



8. When did the council last have the following ceremonial items professionally valued?
a) Ceremonial Mace b) Lord Mayor’s Chains c) Lord Mayor’s Consort’s Chains d)
Lord Mayor’s badge e) Lord Mayor’s Consort’s Badge

How much are these items currently valued at for the purposes of insurance? a)
Ceremonial Mace b) Lord Mayor’s Chains c) Lord Mayor’s Consort’s Chains d) Lord
Mayor’s badge e) Lord Mayor’s Consort’s Badge

How much has the council paid to insure these items in the current financial year
(2017-18)? a) Ceremonial Mace b) Lord Mayor’s Chains c) Lord Mayor’s Consort’s
Chains d) Lord Mayor’s badge e) Lord Mayor’s Consort’s Badge

How much did the council pay to have these items professionally cleaned on the last
occasion that they were professionally cleaned? a) Ceremonial Mace b) Lord
Mayor’s Chains c) Lord Mayor’s Consort’s Chains d) Lord Mayor’s badge e) Lord
Mayor’s Consort’s Badge

9. I would like to know the total budget for the office of the chairman of the council for
the last five years.

I would like to know the full budget for the office and If possible, I would like a
breakdown of costs under the following headings:

· Transport
· Entertaining
· Out of pocket expenses
· Any other expenditure

If this is not possible, a single figure for the spend each year would suffice.

Page 43



Appendix 2

Transformation Programme Consultation Responses for Civic Review

TP18 – Civic Review  (Mayor)

1 No Mayor therefore saving money on cars and insurance.

2. Get rid of Mayors they are waste. Stop paying benefits to layabout stop paying tax
credits to encourages people to work part time.  Close all libraries, put up parking
charges.  Get rid of civil servants who are not needed.  To many pen pushers.  Stop
wasting paper sending out silly circulars like this one.  The council needs to think before
it spends.  30mph speed posting the flash up , a waste of time and money no one takes
any notice of them after all why would any one they don’t take a photo.  , you don’t get a
penalty.  A total waste off our tax payers money, could mention loads of waste.   Also
why are there so many councillor to do a  job that can be done by one.  Plus why do
farmers get subsidised by EU

Page 44



MINUTE.  CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 4 JANUARY 2018

63 TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME - CIVIC REVIEW

The Committee received a report by the Corporate Director detailing a review of the
Council’s Civic and Mayoral function.

The Transformation Programme, approved by Full Council in 11th July 2016,
identified a target savings of £90,000 by 2020 from the Civic and Mayoral budget.
This presented an opportunity to review the function to ensure that the Mayoralty
was modern and fit for purpose, whilst respecting the traditions of the historic office
of Mayor.

The report set out the details of the Civic and Mayoral function and provided options
for where these savings and modernisation might be made.  The report was
previously considered by the Committee at its meeting on 6 October when, following
robust debate, it was agreed to hold an inquiry session to consider the options in
detail and report back to the Committee.

The Civic Review Inquiry Session was held on 16 November 2017 attended by 12
Members.  The outcomes from their discussion were set out in Section 3 of the
report.

To begin with, the Committee debated the matter in general and two main views
emerged.  There was a view that the Mayoral role should be retained as it was and
that the proposed savings would devalue the role and so devalue the importance of
the borough itself.  An alternate view expressed was that, due to lack of funding, it
was essential to consider making some savings and that reducing the Mayoral
budget did not have to mean a reduction of the scope and prestige of the role.

It was asserted that more should be done to promote the town and improve its
economy; the town’s future prosperity depended on increasing tourism by promotion
of its rich heritage and the Mayoral role was key to this.

In response to questions, it was reported that if the Mayor was to drive him or herself
to events, the Council’s insurance would cover the chains and robes when kept at
home and the Council would pay for any damage caused by burglary.  The Mayoral
car was already part of the pool car fleet and if it was replaced by a new pool car the
Mayor would take priority with bookings when a chauffeur was required.  Efforts had
been made previously to secure sponsorship of a car; there had been no interest at
all, but efforts could be repeated.

The point was made that it would not be fair for a Mayor to pay for attendance at
events outside the borough if they were attending to represent the borough.  Also,
the feedback provided in the report did not give a full picture; forms could have been
provided for those visited by the Mayor during the year to give their feedback.

A suggestion was put forward that Cabinet should be asked to consider other
options, though there were objections to an idea to ask the Boston Town Area

Page 45



Committee to take over responsibility for the function, which would make the role a
town Mayor rather than a borough Mayor.

It was then proposed and seconded that there be no reduction in the Mayoral budget
for 2018/19 and that Cabinet and the Corporate Management Team examine
alternative sources of funding to support the service.  However, when put to the vote
this proposal fell.

[Councillor Elizabeth Ransome arrived at 7 pm]

The Committee then considered the outcomes from the Inquiry Session and the
main points made were as follows:

Mayoral Transport

There was a view that the Mayoral role was devalued by arriving at events in a taxi.
However, most Members felt that savings had to be made and public perception of
the amount of expenditure had to be taken into account.  It was considered that the
Inquiry Session outcome provided flexibility for occasions when a chauffeur would be
needed or when driving was not possible, i.e. for health reasons, but it was felt
another example should be added for times when it would be difficult to access a
venue by car.

Mayor’s Officers

Members expressed appreciation for the post holders, commending their knowledge,
commitment and team spirit.  However, some considered that such difficult decisions
about jobs had to be made in order to reduce costs due to the Council’s lack of
funding.  It was noted that most local authorities in the county had ceased to use
chauffeurs.  It would fall to the Chief Executive to work out the effect of decisions
about the Mayoral function on these posts.

Attendance at Events Hosted by Civic Heads

The Inquiry Session outcome had been that travel costs for attendance at events
outside of Lincolnshire should be at the Mayor’s own cost, with consideration given
for travel costs to one-off events agreed by the Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer
to be of significant importance or benefit.  When this was considered, some
Committee Members felt that attendance at events should not be at the Mayor’s own
cost when they were representing the borough.  Reference was made to important
regular liaison meetings in King’s Lynn regarding Die Hanse, which promoted
tourism, heritage etc, and it was agreed that the term “one-off” should be deleted and
these meetings included as an example of exceptions.

Mayoral Allowances

Members were satisfied to receive confirmation that the Independent Remuneration
Panel’s review would cover consideration of the Special Responsibility Allowances
relating to the positions of Mayor and Deputy Mayor.

Page 46



Miscellaneous

With respect to the Service to the Community Awards scheme, there was a call to
bring these to an end, but other Members felt the scheme was important and it
should be more heavily promoted.  One suggestion was to run the scheme every two
or three years, rather than annually, which would reduce costs and might increase its
prestige.  There was agreement with the Inquiry Session outcome that the event be
held in a less formal setting.

There was general agreement with respect to retiring gifts and official photographs.

Summing Up

The Chairman summed up by saying that there appeared to be a general consensus
with respect to the Inquiry Session outcomes with the exception of Transport and the
Mayor’s Officers.

It was then proposed and seconded that the outcomes of the Inquiry Session be put
forward to Cabinet as recommendations with the amendments agreed during the
Committee meeting, including the addition of the Mayoral Allowances to the
Independent Remuneration Panel’s review and a recommendation that the Service
to the Community Awards be held bi-annually.

RESOLVED: That it be recommended to Cabinet to follow the Inquiry Session
outcomes, set out in Section 3 of the report, with the following additions:

3.4.1 Mayoral Transport – In the second paragraph, add a further example of
occasions where it is felt there is a need for the Mayor to be chauffeured:
“where access to a venue by vehicle is difficult”;

3.4.3 Attendance at Events Hosted by Civic Heads – In the second paragraph,
delete the phrase “one-off” and add as an example where consideration would
be given to travel costs to events outside of Lincolnshire of significant
importance or benefit “e.g. an event in King’s Lynn or 2020 events”;

3.4.4 Mayoral Allowances – In the final paragraph, the suggestion be taken
forward that the Independent Remuneration Panel be asked to consider the
level of Special Responsibility Allowances attached to the position of Mayor
and Deputy Mayor when undertaking their current review of all allowances;

3.4.5 (i) – Second paragraph, that the Service to the Community Awards be
made a bi-annual event.

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: Overview and Scrutiny – Corporate and Community Committee  

DATE: 7 April 2022 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

Joint Scrutiny between partner councils in the South & East 

Lincolnshire Councils Partnership (S&ELCP) 

 

To agree a protocol for joint scrutiny between the partner councils 

in the S&ELCP; to agree the scope for a Joint ICT Strategy Task and 

Finish Group; and to agree the appointment of three members to 

the Joint Task and Finish Group.  

KEY DECISION: N 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Portfolio Holder Economic Development and Planning 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Assistant Director - Governance (Monitoring Officer) 

Mark Stinson  

WARD(S) AFFECTED: All 

EXEMPT REPORT? N 

 

 

SUMMARY 

This report outlines a proposal for the three councils in the S&ELCP to undertake joint scrutiny 

on matters of common strategic importance; and the proposed process to achieve this. The 

report also proposes establishment of a Joint ICT Strategy Task and Finish Group. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

a) That the proposals for joint scrutiny arrangements, as set out in Appendix A, be approved; 

 

b) That the scope for the proposed Joint ICT Strategy Task and Finish Group, as set out in 

Appendix B, be approved;  

 

c) That the Committee appoints three members to the proposed Joint ICT Strategy Task and 

Finish Group; and 

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 2



d) That the Task and Finish Group be authorised to determine the detail of its remit and the 

required lines of enquiry and witnesses 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

A co-ordinated approach to matters of common strategic interest is a significant benefit to the 
S&ELCP and its constituent councils. Efficient and effective joint scrutiny will be key to achieving 
that benefit. The proposals in this report outline a clear mechanism for this to be 
achieved/implemented.  

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Do nothing:  not recommended – this approach would not support collaborative working and 

would potentially lead to a duplication of work across the S&ELCP. 

 

1.  BACKGROUND 

1.1 In establishing the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership, members of each of the 

partner councils recognised that matters of common strategic interest would benefit from a  

co-ordinated partnership approach.  

 

1.2 It is considered that the establishment of a joint scrutiny function, to consider matters in 

depth from a Partnership perspective, would be beneficial and would support the co-

ordinated partnership approach.  

1.3 At an initial meeting between the Chairs of the councils’ scrutiny committees, a list of 

potential scrutiny items was considered (these were largely taken from the Annual Delivery 

Plan). Whilst scrutiny committees will, of course, wish to identify their own priorities for joint 

scrutiny, there was general support for a Joint Task and Finish Group to consider an ICT 

Strategy. The proposed scope is set out at Appendix B. The Task and Finish Group will not 

begin to meet immediately as it is anticipated that transport will be the first scrutiny topic to 

be considered. 

2. PROPOSAL 

2.1 The proposed approach to joint scrutiny is set out in Appendix A. However, in short, each 
council’s relevant scrutiny committee will appoint up to three members and any external 
representatives (following that committee’s usual processes) to a joint task and finish group 
for any given topic. Each agreed topic will have its own task and finish group. 

 
2.2  The ‘parent’ scrutiny committees will set the broad remit of the task and finish groups, but 

each task and finish group will have authority to determine the detail and the lines of 
enquiry/witnesses. A Lead Officer will be appointed by the relevant Deputy Chief Executive, 
and that Lead Officer will support the task and finish group and will prepare any final report 
(in consultation with the task and finish group). 

 
2.3 Final task and finish group reports will be submitted to each council’s parent scrutiny 

committee for final review/adoption and subsequent recommendation on to the relevant 
decision-making body as appropriate. 

 Page 50



 
2.4 Feedback on the proposal was obtained from the scrutiny Chairs of each council and that 

feedback has been reflected in this report and/or Appendix A. In summary, feedback was 
that: 

 

 there should be no more than three or four topics considered each year. 

 there needs to be clarity around who approves/implements any recommendations and 
that recommendations be tracked. 

 the arrangements need to be kept as simple as possible. 

 there should be clarity as to whether Joint Task and Finish Groups meet privately or 
publicly. 

 
2.5 Political Group Leaders were also consulted and again their feedback has been reflected in 

this report and/or Appendix A. In summary, feedback was that: 
 

 place based scrutiny arrangements may need to be examined in order to ensure that 
joint scrutiny is successful. 

 given that there are limited resources, any joint scrutiny needs to be restricted to areas 
where there is a genuine need, identified benefits and anticipation of real outcomes. 

 
2.6 Whilst the scrutiny committees of each Council will wish to identify their own topics for 

joint scrutiny, a number of proposed topics have been identified, largely from the Annual 
Delivery Plan, and are listed in Appendix  C. 

 
2.7 Finally, it should be noted that two of the councils have more than one ‘parent’ scrutiny 

committee. The proposal at Appendix A assumes that the approval of scopes and the 
appointment of members to Task and Finish Groups will be determined by the parent 
committee whose terms of reference most closely reflect the topic in question – but with 
the overarching aim of equal distribution of topics between those parent committees so far 
as practicable. 

 
2.8  The process set out in Appendix A, when viewed in light of local custom and practice in 

scrutiny, will be kept under review and brought back to parent scrutiny committees for 
consideration and/or amendment as may be necessary. 

 

3. CONCLUSION 
 
3.1 This report seeks approval of the proposals for joint scrutiny of matters of strategic 

importance to the Partnership and the establishment of the Joint ICT Strategy Task and 
Finish Group. 

 
4. EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

4.1 Collaborative working on areas of strategic importance. 
 
5. IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP 

5.1.1 The approach proposed in this report fully supports the strategic objectives of the S&ELCP. 

 

Page 51



 

5.2 CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

5.2.1 Task and Finish Groups will be established to address joint strategic objectives of the 

S&ELCP. This means that, over time, many such priorities will be covered and many of these 

will align to or support local corporate priorities. 

5.3 STAFFING 

5.3.1 There will be some additional meetings which will have an impact on officer and member 

time. However, in light of feedback from scrutiny chairs, the number of task and finish 

groups will be limited to a maximum of four per year.  

5.4 CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.4.1 All recommendations arising from joint task and finish groups will be reported to each 

sovereign council’s parent scrutiny committee. If supported, those recommendations will 

then be considered by the relevant decision-maker for each sovereign council. As such, the 

process is legally and constitutionally sound. 

5.4.2 Suitable provision will be made in the Constitutions of each council as part of the proposed 

review of the constitutions set out in the Annual Delivery Plan. 

5.5 DATA PROTECTION 

5.5.1 It is likely that most of the work of task and finish groups will not involve the use of 

personal data. However, should personal data be processed, each of the councils have 

appropriate technical and organisational measures in place to protect the same. There are 

also suitable protocols in place between the councils. 

5.6 FINANCIAL 

5.6.1 There are unlikely to be any significant financial implications. There may be a small 
additional cost in terms of the cost of travel and venue hire (if required). 

 
5.7 RISK MANAGEMENT 

5.7.1 None at this stage. 

 
5.8 STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

5.8.1 A draft of these proposals has been shared with scrutiny chairs, political group leaders and 

Cabinet members. Feedback as a result of that consultation has been incorporated in the 

report and/or the proposals at Appendix A. 

5.9 REPUTATION 

5.9.1 Successful delivery of joint scrutiny, which leads to improved strategic outcomes, will be 

important to the reputation of the S&ELCP. 

5.10 CONTRACTS 

5.10.1 None at this stage. 

5.11 CRIME AND DISORDER 

Page 52



5.11.1 None at this stage. 

5.12 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

5.12.1 None at this stage. 

5.13 HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

5.13.1 None at this stage. 

5.14  CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.14.1 None at this stage – although the outcome of scrutinising various topics has the potential to 

impact positively on climate change and environmental matters. 

6. ACRONYMS 

6.1 BBC   – Boston Borough Council 
 ELDC   – East Lindsey District Council 
 SHDC   – South Holland District Council 

S&ELCP    – South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership 
 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Joint Scrutiny Proposal 

APPENDIX B Joint ICT Strategy Scope 

APPENDIX C List of potential joint scrutiny topics (arising mostly from 

the Annual Delivery Plan) 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny – Environment and 

Performance Committee (in respect of the general proposals, not the ICT Strategy Task and 

Finish Group) 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Mark Stinson 

Mark.Stinson@sholland.gov.uk 

Signed off by: Assistant Director - Governance (Monitoring 

Officer) 

Page 53



Mark.Stinson@sholland.gov.uk 

Approved for publication: Portfolio Holder Economic Development & Planning 

 

Page 54



         Appendix A  

Joint Scrutiny Framework 

Background 

In establishing the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership, members of each of the partner 

councils recognised that there would be matters of common strategic interest which would benefit 

from a co-ordinated partnership approach.  

In progressing such items, it is sensible to establish a joint scrutiny function to consider the matters 

in depth from a Partnership perspective. 

Proposed Approach to Joint Scrutiny 

It is important that scrutiny of any topics agreed as being important to the Partnership is conducted 

jointly but it is also important that such scrutiny is legally and constitutionally robust from the 

perspective of each sovereign council. 

In order to achieve both of the above requirements, each agreed topic will be considered by a Joint 

Task and Finish Group. The members of each Task and Finish Group be appointed by each of the 

sovereign councils’ appropriate overview and scrutiny committee which are: 

 For SHDC, Policy Development Panel or Performance Monitoring Panel 

 For ELDC, the Overview Committee 

 For BBC, the Overview & Scrutiny – Corporate and Community Committee or the Overview 

and Scrutiny Environment and Performance Committee 

Each principal scrutiny committee will appoint a maximum of three elected members to each 

established Task and Finish Group (whether from the membership of the ‘parent’ scrutiny 

committee or any other non-executive members of the relevant sovereign council) in accordance 

with their usual process for appointing to Task and Finish Groups. This will enable a wide range of 

members to be appointed to different Task and Finish Groups. Principal scrutiny committees may 

also appoint other suitable individuals to Task and Finish Groups as necessary (an example might be 

an individual from the NHS for a health-related topic). 

Where a council has more than one principal scrutiny committee, the scope for a Task and Finish 

Group will be taken to the principal scrutiny committee whose terms of reference most closely 

match the topic in question – but with the intention of equal allocation overall so far as practicable. 

In order to create the necessary governance link in each council’s decision-making process, the Task 

and Finish Group’s recommendations and/or updates will be reported back to each sovereign 

council’s principal scrutiny committee for approval and/or information as appropriate. 

Principal scrutiny committees will set the remit of each Task and Finish Group at a high level, but 

authority to determine the detail of the remit and the required lines of enquiry/witnesses will be 

delegated to Task and Finish Groups by each parent scrutiny committee. 

The Deputy Chief Executive, within whose portfolio the scrutiny topic resides, will appoint the Lead 

Officer to support the Task and Finish Group; and the final report of any Task and Finish Group will 

be drafted by the Lead Officer (in consultation with the Task and Finish Group) in order to avoid any 

suggestion of bias towards any one of the Partnership councils. 

Page 55



In order to ensure that capacity is managed, any joint scrutiny work must have clear benefits and no 

more than four topics will be scrutinised in any municipal year. 

Recommendations from Task and Finish Groups, if supported by the parent scrutiny committees, will 

be taken through the relevant decision-making process of each Council. The decision-maker will 

depend upon whether the matter in question is an executive or non-executive function. 

Recommendations will be tracked by the DEMS Team(s) in liaison with the Lead Officer. 

It is recognised that a free and frank exchange of ideas, together with the willingness of witnesses to 

engage, may be best served by meetings taking place in private. Task and finish groups will, 

however, be free to meet in public where they feel that this best serves the public interest. 

Recommendations will in any event be reported to parent scrutiny committees. These meetings will 

be considered in public unless it is clearly in the public interest not to do so. 

The partner Councils will keep this process, and the way it operates alongside place-based scrutiny, 

under review 

Flowchart 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PDP or PMP (SHDC) 
Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee (ELDC) 

O&S C and C or O&S E 

and P (BBC) 

Joint Task & Finish Group                                                                  

Agrees detail, lines of enquiry and witnesses and undertakes the 

scrutiny. 

Supported by Lead Officer                                                                    

Lead Officer appointed by relevant Deputy Chief Executive 

Final report and any update reports drafted by Lead Officer and 

presented to parent Overview & Scrutiny Committees for formal 

approval. 

Appoint up to 3 members each, plus any external representatives that might 

be helpful to the topic.  Set broad topic for scrutiny. 

Topic identified 

Page 56



 

SCRUTINY & POLICY PANELS 

Project Scoping Template 
 

Topic: S&ELCP ICT Strategy 

 
 
 
 

Objectives and Key Issues: 

 

To review the proposed partnership ICT strategy and provide feedback for 

inclusion in the subsequent cabinet/executive report. 

 

A key area of focus should be whether the strategy supports the delivery of the 
partnership business case previously agreed by Council. 

 

Lines of Enquiry: 
 

- whether the strategy supports the delivery of the partnership business 
case; 

- whether the priorities identified in the strategy feel right to members;  

- alignment to other emerging partnership strategies 
  
 

 

 
Standard Areas to Consider: Equalities / Relationship with Corporate Strategy / 
Financial Implication 
 
 
Witnesses: 

 
Internal: James Gilbert, portfolio holders, CMT 
External: Jackie Wright PSPS, SOCITM (strategy production partner) 
 
Resources: n/a 
 
Liaison Officer: James Gilbert 

 
Required officer expertise: n/a 

 

Timescale 

Start date: TBC 

End date: TBC 

Target Overview / Scrutiny meetings: TBC 

Target Council meeting: TBC 
 

Page 57



 

 

Page 58



 

Suggested joint scrutiny topics 

Topic Portfolio Holders CX / DCX Assistant  

Director 

Possible  

Timeline 
Public Transport (Review bus/train provision, the challenges and 
opportunities, access to education/employment/tourism) 

SHDC – Cllr N. Worth 
BBC – Cllr N. Welton 
ELDC – Cllr Grist / Kirk 

Michelle Sacks Lydia Rusling March 2022 
3 – 6 months 

ICT Strategy (review of the proposed S&ELCP ICT strategy in terms 
of priorities and delivery) 

SHDC – Cllr J. Astill 
BBC – Cllr P. Skinner 
ELDC – Cllr C. Leyland 

Christine Marshall James Gilbert May 2022 
2 months 

Housing Strategy (Developing a Housing Strategy across the 
Partnership including impact on decisions around housing list 
prioritisation) 

SHDC – Cllr C. Lawton 
BBC – Cllr M. Griggs 
ELDC – Cllr W. Gray  

John Leach  Emily Spicer October 2022 
3-4 months 

Health & Leisure Facilities (sub-region) SHDC – G. Taylor 
BBC – Cllr T. Abbott 
ELDC – Cllr G. Marsh 

John Leach Phil Perry September 2022 
3 – 4 months 

Health & Wellbeing Action Plan (sub-region) (Developing a Health 
& Wellbeing action plan across the Partnership addressing health 
inequalities and linking to the wider determinants of health) 

SHDC – Cllr E. Sneath 
BBC – Cllr M. Griggs 
ELDC – Cllr W. Gray 

John Leach Emily Spicer July 2022 
3 – 6 months 

Environmental Act 2021 (sub-region) (Developing the waste 
strategy in order to deliver the requirements of the Act as set out in 
the statutory guidance due Spring 2022) 

SHDC – Cllr R. Gambba-Jones 
BBC – Cllr D. Evans 
ELDC – Cllr M. Foster 

John Leach Victoria Burgess January 2023 
3 – 4 months 

Single Use Waste Policy (development of a partnership approach to 
the sustainable purchasing of supplies and services to influence and 
reduce waste and use of resources in manufacture and  supply 
chains) 

SHDC – R. Gambba-Jones 
BBC – Cllr D. Evans 
ELDC – Cllr M. Foster 

John Leach Christian Allen September 2022 
2 months 

Housing Delivery (delivery of 1000 properties across the partnership 
over 10 years) 

SHDC – Cllr P. Coupland 
BBC – Cllr J. Noble 
ELDC – Cllr R. Fry 

Adrian Sibley Richard Hodgson 1 – 2 months 

An offer to Overview & Scrutiny to review the work of the 
executive/cabinet and look for partnership opportunities to explore 
such as policy development, service merger reviews and 
partnership engagement. 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Chairs 
and Vice Chairs from SHDC, 
BBC and ELDC 

Rob Barlow All n/a 

 

P
age 59



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

REPORT TO: CORPORATE & COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 7th February 2022 

SUBJECT: ANNUAL SAFEGUARDING REPORT 2021-2022 

KEY DECISION:  

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

No 

Cllr Paul Skinner 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: 

Ian Dunn 

ALL 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 

This report provides an overview of the Council’s safeguarding activity from 1 April 2021 to 31st 

March 2022. It seeks to provide assurance that the Council is vigilant in keeping people safe and 

to challenge any areas which could further improve the Council’s current approach to guard 

against complacency. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Members note the report. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To fulfil the Committee’s oversight role. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

None 

 

 

 Page 61

Agenda Item 3



REPORT 

1.1. This report seeks to provide assurance that BBC is vigilant in responding to safeguarding 
concerns, is actively engaged in working with other agencies and fulfils its statutory duties.  

1.2. All agencies, including District Councils, are required to comply with national legislation, 
statutory guidance and locally agreed multi-agency policies and procedures in order to 
safeguard children and adults, including those affected by domestic abuse. The range of 
issues is constantly expanding but includes child abuse, domestic abuse, violent 
extremism, hate crime, county lines and modern slavery. The legislation and guidance 
include: 

 Children Act (2004) and Working Together (2018) 
 Care Act (2014) and Care and Support Statutory Guidance (2016) 
 Mental Capacity Act (2005) 
 Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act (2014) 
 Modern Slavery Act (2015) 

1.3. All agencies have a legal duty to work within local multi-agency safeguarding 
arrangements. Lincolnshire’s District Council Safeguarding Officers share attendance at 
different multi-agency groups, reporting back to each other by email and meeting every 3 
months to share best practice, needs and concerns. BBC officers are fully engaged in 
Lincolnshire’s multi-agency structures. 

1.4. National guidance and local policies are developed in response to learning e.g., from case 
reviews. The Council’s Safeguarding Policy is subject to an annual review to reflect any 
changes in national legislation or guidance, local procedures, and learning from audits and 
case reviews. The policy, now a joint policy with East Lindsey District Council, was 
approved in May 2021 and all staff and councillors have been asked to sign the updated 
policy. 

1.5. All agencies, including District Councils, are held to account by the Independent Chairmen 
of the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Partnership (LSCP) and the Lincolnshire 
Safeguarding Adults Board (LSAB). In line with national legislation, each Board requires 
agencies to complete regular audits, formally reporting their findings. An online audit tool 
provided by the Boards enables agencies to update their evidence as work develops, 
reducing the surge of work required when a formal audit is due. Compliance is shown as 
follows: 

 LSCP: Section 11 Audit, every 3 years; regular Audit Assurance updates; self-
assessment; external moderation; thematic reviews, serious case reviews, 
domestic homicide reviews. 

 LSAB: Lincolnshire Assurance Framework (LAF), every 3 years; self-assessment; 
action plan with some essential criteria to meet. 

1.6. The LSCP employs an Audit and Policy Officer to oversee a rolling programme of case file 
audits to ensure that all agencies regularly review working practices on key issues. Not all 
audit topics are relevant to District Councils, but BBC participates fully in those which are. 
After each audit, a report with clear recommendations is produced for the Board and 
agencies are required to implement the findings. The most recent audits related to 
Children with Disabilities and Transition to Adulthood. BBC reviews all reports arising from 
these audits. Any action required is captured in BBC’s Strategic Plan (Appendix A).  

Page 62



1.7. Both Safeguarding Boards have Serious Incident Review Groups (SIRGs) to review 
individual cases in detail. These work to national criteria to identify improvements in 
policy and practice. Similarly, there is a statutory duty to undertake Domestic Homicide 
Reviews. BBCC officers are fully involved in DHR’s relating to cases from the District when 
these arise. 

1.8. BBC is proactive in supporting the Prevent agenda which seeks to identify, support, and 
protect those at risk of becoming involved in violent extremism. A senior manager is 
identified as the Prevent lead for the Council. Training is provided as part of the 
safeguarding training programme for staff and councillors, which is currently being 
updated as part of the policy review. 

1.9. The business managers of the Local Safeguarding Children Partnership (LSCP) Adult 
Safeguarding Board (LSAB) and Safer Lincolnshire Partnership (SLP) meet regularly to 
ensure effective scrutiny, accountability and collaborative working is enhanced and 
carefully managed across the boards. Under the umbrella of the Public Protection Board 
the close working relationship between the boards is proving effective in ensuring that 
priorities are understood and shared, resources are coordinated, and challenge between 
the boards is robust and effective to ensure the very best for Children and Adults alike. 

1.10. BBC has a legal duty to act to ensure that its own employment practices, and those of its 
contractors, prevent and disrupt Modern Slavery.  

1.11. BBC’s safeguarding duties apply to all staff, elected members, volunteers, key contractors, 
consultants and directly commissioned providers acting on behalf of the Council. 

1.12. Appendix B provides a full overview of activity undertaken from 1 April 2021 to 31st March 
2022. 

1.13. Appendix A is BBC’s Safeguarding Strategic Plan for 2021/2022. This identifies key tasks 
for the current year but remains flexible to meet needs which cannot be foreseen in 
advance, such as an incident which requires officer involvement in a Serious Case Review 
or a Domestic Homicide Review which may require other activity to be re-scheduled. This 
is now a joint plan with ELDC. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
N/A 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

These are considered throughout this report 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

 

Page 63



EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 

BBC’s Safeguarding Policy identifies the potential increased risk of abuse and neglect for those 

with additional needs and the need to act accordingly. This includes assessing a person’s mental 

capacity in line with the Mental Capacity Act 2005. The Policy also recognises that some practices 

which may be legal in some parts of the world are not legal in the UK and may result in formal 

action being taken. 

 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

Safeguarding is included in the Council’s Strategic Risk Register. The Council’s overall risk appetite 

is ‘open and aware’ but for safeguarding the Council’s appetite for risk is minimal. Whilst no 

organisation or legislation can stop people who are determined to do harm from doing so, the 

Council aims as far as possible to prevent and reduce the risk of harm occurring by taking steps to 

ensure that: 

 staff and councillors are knowledgeable, well trained, and vigilant i.e., they know what to 
look for, who to speak to, etc.; 

 key contractors comply with national and local policies and procedures; 

 information sharing and record keeping are appropriate; 

 BBC co-operate with a wide range of agencies to help prevent, detect, and disrupt 
inappropriate activity; 

 national and local policies and procedures are adopted, disseminated, and implemented; 

 regular audit and reviews take place to identify and embed learning, to ensure compliance 
and to challenge complacency. 

 

CONSULTATION 

 No consultation undertaken. 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Safeguarding Strategic Plan 

APPENDIX B Safeguarding Activity Summary 2021-2022 

 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Safeguarding Policy and Procedures 2021 - 2023 BBC website 

 

 

Page 64



CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

  

  

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Ian Dunn 

Signed off by: Emily Spicer, Assistant Director Wellbeing & 

Community Leadership 

Approved for publication:  

 

 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A  1 

 

East Lindsey District Council & Boston Borough Council – Alliance Safeguarding Strategic Plan 2021/22 
This Plan aims to ensure that ELDC and BBC fulfil the obligations in their Safeguarding Policies and Procedures document, as well as 

supporting the LSCB and LSAB Strategic Aims and Objectives, and the Lincolnshire Domestic Abuse Charter. It is updated regularly. 

Progress is reported to the relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees and the Housing, Communities & Better Ageing Portfolio Holders. 

 

ACTIVITY LEAD 
OFFICER 

 

UPDATE 
Q1 Apr-Jun 21, Q2 Jul-Sep 21, Q3 Oct-Dec 21, Q4 Jan-Mar 22 

STATUS 
Green (completed)  

orange (on track/in progress)  
red (overdue/concerns about delivery) 

Promote safeguarding seminars for voluntary sector 
groups – covers online safety, radicalisation, safer 
recruitment, roles, and responsibilities 

Emma Staff Q1 - 4 virtual seminars between April and June 
2021. People would need to contact 
LSCP@lincolnshire.gov.uk to book a place / for 
further details. 

 

Contribute to a review of representation on LSAB sub-

groups 

Safeguarding 
Assistant 

Q2 – district safeguarding meeting in July to 
agree way forward 

 

Ensure all staff are encouraged to complete the e-learning 
module ‘Making Safeguarding Personal’ 

Safeguarding 
Assistant / 
Emma Staff 

Q1 – Communications email sent to all staff 
Q2 – reminder sent to all staff as part of the 
updated training rollout 

 

Ensure managers / front-line staff are encouraged to 
complete ‘Mental Health Awareness’ and ‘Supporting your 
Staff through Mental Health’ e-learning courses 

Safeguarding 
Assistant / 
Emma Staff 

Q1 – message in One team Briefing email to all 
staff 
 

 

Hoarding protocol – ensure relevant staff are aware of 
where these documents can be accessed. 

 Q2 -Hoarding Protocol Documents added to 
intranet safeguarding page 

 

S11 Audit and Moderation Safeguarding 
Assistant 
 

This was submitted in February 2021  

Quarterly staff briefings on key areas to be arranged and 
recorded 
 

AD for 
housing & 
wellbeing 

Q1 – policy 
Q2 – training 
Q3 – annual plan 
Q4 – case management 

 

Incorporate safeguarding training requirements onto 
First4HR system for new and existing employees. 

Safeguarding 
assistant / 
HR 

Q1 – agreed which are mandatory pre=-
employment 
Q2 – training accessed via First4HR system from 
September 2021 
Q3 – training being allocated to BBC and ELDC  
staff on First4HR system 

 

P
age 67

mailto:LSCP@lincolnshire.gov.uk


Appendix A  2 

 

Annual safeguarding review to BBC and ELDC committees Safeguarding 
Assistant 

Q3 - BBC – Corporate & Community Scrutiny 
Committee will now be Q4 
Q3 - ELDC – Audit & Governance Committee 

 

Agree spending priorities for the Domestic Abuse funding Jason Oxby Q3 & 4 – Awaiting LCC to complete DA needs 
assessment and then provide options report to 
DA Core Priority Group in order for decisions to 
be made about use of the funding including 
funding received by tier 2 authorities. 

 

Corporate Safeguarding Group to be formalised to ensure 
effective delivery, dissemination of information and 
ownership/embedding of actions 

Safeguarding 
Assistant 

Q1 – group formalised, ToR agreed, monthly 
meetings with standing agenda have been agreed 

 

Updated safeguarding policy to be added to First4HR 
system for staff and councillors 
 
 

HR Q1 – policy added to Firt4HR system and all staff 
and councillors notified to sign 
Q2 – reminders sent to those who have not yet 
signed 
Q3 – policy updated on system 

 

Hate crime charter to be sent to the relevant portfolio 
holder meeting and a link to be added to it from the 
safeguarding page 

Sarah Cocker 
/  
Safeguarding 
Assistant 

  

eCINS case management system – implement use of this 
to record and monitor safeguarding issues 
 
 

 Q1 – implemented, Ian Dunn provided 
advice/training for ELDC officers 
Q2 – use of system embedded in relevant 
departments 

 

Refresh Modern Slavery Statement & Action Plan and 
ensure the latest version is added to the ELDC website 

HR   

Modern Slavery to stay on the Corporate Risk Register and 
be reviewed annually 
Ensure Modern Slavery and other Safeguarding topics are 
included as an annual review/refresher on the RMD 
agenda 

John Medler 
 
Safeguarding 
Assistant 

Q1 – Risk Register reviewed by Audit & 
Governance Committee 

 

new safeguarding page on intranet OneTeamHub 
 
 

Safeguarding 
assistant 

Q2 – page goes live 
Comms to staff so they can find it 

 

Update DBS requirement for all roles 
 

HR and AD 
for housing 

Q1 – work started by HR 
Q2 – work due to be finalised 

 

P
age 68



Appendix A  3 

 

 & wellbeing 

Promote National / International Awareness days via staff 
/ member briefings, emails, posters,  and social media 
posts 
 

 Q1 – Stress Awareness Month (April) 
Mental Health Awareness Week (18-23 May) 
Loneliness awareness week (14-18 June) 
Q2 – Youth Mental Health Day (7 September) 
Suicide Prevention Day (10 September) 
Q3 – World Mental Health Day (10 October) 
Domestic Violence Awareness Month (October) 
Stress Awareness Day (6 November) 
Day for the abolition of slavery (2 December) 
Q4 – Human Trafficking Awareness Day (11 
January) 
Children’s Mental Health Awareness Week (4-11 
February) 

 

Establish a Vulnerable Adults Panel for Boston Borough 
Council  

Jason Oxby Q2 – the meeting has been incorporated into the 
Boston Neighbourhoods team MDT meetings. 

 

Review ELDC Vulnerable Adults Panel to decide whether 
better outcomes could be achieved and remove 
duplication if the panel was incorporated into the East 
Lindsey area Neighbourhoods team MDT meetings 

Jason Oxby Q2 – Trialling referrals into the MDT during 
September 2021 and will then decide whether to 
make this permanent. 

 

Embed LCC’s Team around Adult process within East 
Lindsey and Boston Borough to ensure people with 
complex needs can be escalated to LCC where specialist 
advice and support is required. 

Jason Oxby Q2 – Officers and partner organisations aware of 
TAA. Cases be escalated to TAA coordinators 
where appropriate.   Starting to see some 
positive outcomes but still are some challenges, 
particularly mental health. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 69



Appendix A  4 

 

Domestic Abuse Charter LSAB Aims 21/22:  

1. The agency understands the realities of domestic abuse and its 

impact on, and cost to, the services it provides. 

1. Accountability - accountability and transparency in delivering 

safeguarding 

2. Domestic Abuse material is displayed in different languages relevant 

to local communities and is also available in alternative formats such as 

large print. Information about domestic abuse is included on respective 

agencies websites with links to the Lincolnshire DA website 

2. Partnership - providing local solutions through services 

working with communities 

3. There is an effective domestic abuse policy/protocol or guidance in 

place detailing how the council will respond to domestic abuse 

3. Prevention - it is better to take action before harm occurs 

4. Risk identification, risk assessment and risk management processes, 

for victims, perpetrators and children are fully embedded within the 

council 

4. Proportionality - proportionate and least intrusive response 

appropriate to the risk presented 

5. There is full participation in the MARAC process for High-Risk Victims 5. Protection - support and protection for those in greatest need 

6. All appropriate referral/signposting pathways are in place for standard 

and medium victims 

6. Empowerment - promoting person-led decisions and informed 

consent 

7. Staff who require Domestic Abuse training have been identified and 

the level of training required assessed 

 

LSCP Priorities 21/22: 

8. All identified staff have been trained to the required level 

 

1. Tackling Child Exploitation 

9. There is regular attendance & participation at the Domestic Abuse 

Strategic Management Board and Domestic Abuse Delivery Group 

2. Enhancing the emotional wellbeing of children and young 

people 

10. The council has an employee policy for staff experiencing or 

perpetrating domestic violence 

 

3. Promoting healthy relationships 

 

Modern Slavery & Human Trafficking  4. Working together to recognise risk making behaviours 

 

1. The Council will update its Modern Slavery Statement annually. 5. To identify and reduce the impact of neglect on children and 

young people 

Prevent 

 

6. To identify and reduce the impact of Domestic Abuse on 

children, young people, and their families 

1. The Council will fulfil its legal duties to prevent extremism  

 

P
age 70



Appendix B 

SAFEGUARDING ACTIVITY SUMMARY 
 
 
1. BBC POLICY AND PROCEDURES 
 

a. BBC Safeguarding policy and associated procedures 
 
The Policy sets out how the Council will meet its statutory duties and locally agreed 
guidelines. It applies to all BBC staff, volunteers, councillors, key contractors, and 
consultants. It contains the Council’s commitment to meeting these requirements, the core 
principles which underpin all safeguarding activity and best practice for working with 
individuals, such as information sharing, mental capacity and seeking consent for referrals. 
The policy and procedures are reviewed annually, with a full review completed every three 
years. A new joint ELDC/BBC policy was agreed in May 2021. 
 
b. Safeguarding Document Retention Policy 
 
The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) requires the Council to know what data 
we hold, whether we are dealing with it lawfully, what we must tell our customers and 

what rights they have over the data we hold about them. Our Retention and Destruction 
Schedule identifies the types of records held, the length of time each document/electronic 
record is retained and when it should be destroyed. In some cases, records are retained 
permanently. Records scheduled for destruction will be destroyed in accordance with our 
Records Management Policy. Backup copies stored on alternative media 
(server/microfilm/paper) will also be destroyed. This ensures compliance with the Data 
Protection Act. The schedule is a ‘living document’ that will be amended and modified when 
retention details change, new information is kept, or regulations and legislation that 

govern information and its use are introduced or changed. BBC needs to balance the 
requirement to be able to interrogate previous records to support safeguarding reviews 
and enquiries with the requirement not to store data any longer than is reasonable. 
 
c. Privacy and Consent notice with a guide on information sharing 
 
One of the principles of the new GDPR is that personal data should be processed lawfully, 
fairly and in a transparent manner in relation to the data subject. BBC respects residents’ 
privacy and will process any data they give us fairly and lawfully. By processing data, we 
mean the collecting, using, sharing, retaining, and disposing of it. In order to provide a 
wide range of services, we may need to collect personal details appropriate to the 
service(s) required. We will only ever ask for information that is absolutely necessary and 
does not constitute an invasion of privacy. A privacy notice is a statement about our policy 
on collecting and handling personal data. It is usually given or made available to an 

individual when data is collected about him or her. We will ask customers to sign the 
privacy and consent notice if they agree to their information being shared. In terms of 
safeguarding vulnerable adults, it should be noted that consent to share information must 
be gained unless it is deemed that the adult in question lacks mental capacity. According 
to the Mental Capacity Act 2015 it is important to remember that ‘people make unwise 
choices even when they have capacity’ and this needs to be taken into account when 
considering a referral. 
 

2. LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
 
a) Training Plans 
 
BBC’s Training and Development programme has recently undergone major revision and 
will be relaunched during this municipal year. It is essential that everyone to whom the 
policy applies is able to recognise and respond to possible safeguarding risks and issues 

across all relevant policy areas. The level of training and knowledge required by each 

Page 71



Appendix B 

person is determined by their role and their level of contact with vulnerable customers – 
all roles within the organisation have been categorised using the requirements of the 
National Competencies Framework for Children and Adults. Service Managers must include 
in their team training plans the appropriate safeguarding training for their team members. 
The Safeguarding Boards offer a wide range of free courses to support people to develop 

their skills and knowledge, with most of this accessed via e-learning.  
 
b) Prevent Training 
 
PREVENT is part of the UK Government’s Counter Terrorism strategy. It aims to stop 
people being drawn into terrorism or supporting terrorism. PREVENT aims to safeguard 
individuals without criminalising them. The Prevent training is designed to provide frontline 
staff and members of the community with an understanding of what Prevent means, where 
it sits in the safeguarding arena and knowledge of how people can recognise vulnerability 
in individuals that they might come across either during the course of their work or in their 
community. Prevent training is included in the revised training programme. 
 
c) Safer Recruitment Training 
 

Safer Recruitment training emphasises that: 
 

• The application process should include the organisation’s commitment to 
safeguarding; e.g., referenced in the Job Description and other documentation; 

• Thorough checks should be made of an applicant’s identity, work history and 
references including any gaps in time; 

• Proof of qualifications should be obtained; 
• Checks with the Disclosure and Barring Service should be undertaken; 

• A probationary period and supervision of the person should take place; 
• References should be obtained and verified. 

 
Safer Recruitment is an induction module for relevant staff in the new training programme. 
 
d) Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Training 
 
BBC is committed to preventing slavery and human trafficking in its corporate activities 
and to ensuring that its supply chains are free from slavery and human trafficking. Training 
on Trafficking, Exploitation and Modern Slavery is included in the training programme that 
all Council employees are required to complete. 
 
3. REPORTING AND INFORMATION SHARING 
 

a) BBC Reporting incidents to others 
 
BBC logged, reported, and followed up 12 safeguarding concerns from 1 April 2021 to 31 
March 2022.  
 
b) BBC Responding to information requests from others 
 
BBC is required to search its records in relation to specific individuals to assist with serious 

incident reviews (child or adult), domestic homicides or searches for missing people. BBC 
also search their records for cases that go to MACE (Multi Agency Child Exploitation). MACE 
provides a way of managing CSE and missing risk in the community, building on successful 
models from in the UK. Multi agency MACE meetings are held every month and people 
that are directly working with the young person or perpetrator are invited. The information 
supplied by BBC departments establishes whether any safeguarding concerns or 
information is held on the individual/s. A deadline date needs to be met.  
 

Page 72



Appendix B 

4. MULTI AGENCY WORKING 
 
a) Multi-Agency Child Exploitation Meeting 
 
The Multi-Agency Child Exploitation Meeting (MACE) meets monthly, assisting front line 

practitioners and agencies to protect children and young people who are at high risk of 
abuse or are being abused through sexual exploitation. The meeting monitors and reviews 
existing plans for the children and young people and co-ordinates support and 
intervention. The MACE meeting also discusses, and monitors known perpetrators and 
other people of interest connected to CSE. The MACE meeting collates data and information 
relating to victims and perpetrators of this crime, identifies themes and trends, and helps 
partners to disrupt and prosecute the individuals who perpetrate this form of abuse. BBC 
receives the agenda and documents for each case to be discussed and is asked to provide 
an update of any contact with the young person/perpetrator since the last MACE meeting. 
 
b) Team Around the Child (TAC) and Child in Need (CIN) 
 
TAC and CIN meetings are case specific. BBC officers may start a TAC process or may be 
invited to attend a TAC convened by another professional. 

 
c) Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Board (LSAB) 
 
The Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Board (LSAB) is a multi-agency partnership, 
comprising of a range of organisations that all have legal duties and/or stakeholder interest 
in the safeguarding adult’s agenda. LSAB has updated its local policies and procedures, 
requesting all organisations to embed these in their own policies. BBC’s revised policy has 
ensured these have been embedded. 

 
d) Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conferences (MARAC) 
 
MARAC meetings consider the needs of individual adults at the highest risk of significant 
harm from domestic abuse. Our ASB Officer is required to attend MARAC meetings when 
we are actively involved in an ongoing case. MARAC meetings are held weekly. Our ASB 
officer sends relevant information that we hold to support any MARAC cases where the 
victim’s address is in the borough of Boston.  
 
e) Multi-Agency Public Protection Arrangements (MAPPA) 
 
MAPPA meetings oversee the management of violent and sexual offenders. BBC Officers 
attend Level 2 and 3 meetings as appropriate. These are case specific and between 2 and 
7 cases are heard each meeting. Officers are only invited to BBC cases. 

 
f) Boston Borough Vulnerable Adults Panel (VAP) 
 
There is no longer a VAP held in Boston, however, Team around the Adult (TAA) is now 
operational in Lincolnshire and supports similar multi agency meetings with particularly 
complex cases.  Cases can be escalated to a TAA coordinator who will work with the 
referrer to try and overcome the identified needs.  BBC officers are invited to TAA meetings 
where applicable. 

 
g) District Council Safeguarding Officers Network 
 
BBC officers continue to liaise regularly with other District Council Safeguarding Officers, 
attending 8-weekly Network meetings. 
 
 
 

Page 73



Appendix B 

5. AUDIT, REVIEW, LEARNING AND ASSURANCE 
 
a) Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Partnership Section 11 Audit 
 
All agencies are required to complete a Section 11 audit every 3 years. The outcomes of 

the audit are reported to the LSCP. The most recent Section 11 audit was completed in 
June 2021. The Section 11 Audit is an important element in providing assurance that BBC 
complies with safeguarding legislation. All recommendations from the moderator have 
been actioned or included in the Safeguarding Strategic Plan. 
 
b) LSCP Multi Agency Large Scale and Case File Audits 
 
The LSCP has a legal duty to monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of what is done by 
the Board partners individually and collectively to safeguard and promote the welfare of 
children and advise on ways to improve practice and outcomes for children. The LSCP large 
scale and case file audit programme is developed with partner agencies. Each audit has a 
task and finish group, clear terms of reference to determine its scope, and agreed 
deadlines for completion. The LSCP sends out audit requests relating to between 4 and 6 
individual cases. Agencies must respond within five working days to confirm whether they 

have worked with the child / family. If they have, the agency is expected to complete the 
audit review template to identify strengths and weaknesses, and then to send the 
appropriate officers to the Audit Challenge Day. 
 
c) Serious Case Reviews 
 
BBC are invited to serious case reviews where applicable. 
 

d) Lincolnshire Assurance Framework (Adults) 
 
The Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Self-Assessment and Assurance Framework (LAAF) 
draws on existing standards and inspection frameworks including The Care Quality 
Commission (CQC) Essential Standards for Quality and Safety. It aims to support services 
to meet their adult safeguarding duties and achieve improved outcomes in preventing 
harm occurring and supporting those where harm has occurred. The framework covers 
strategy, systems, workforce, partnerships, and commissioning arrangements, and aims 
to: 
 

- Help services review and benchmark their safeguarding adult’s arrangements 
- Provide assurance and accountability for the organisation and to their partners and 

service users 
- Assist organisations to develop action plans for improved outcomes 

- Identify evidence or gaps in provision that will be relevant in complying with 
Essential Standards of Quality and Safety and the Equality Act 

- Support multi agency safeguarding adult’s objectives. 
 
The most recent LAAF audit was completed during 2019. 
 
 
 

e) DASMB Domestic Homicide Review (DHR) 
 
The Home Office multi-agency statutory guidance defines a Domestic Homicide Review as 
a review of the circumstances in which the death of a person aged 16 or over, has or 
appears to have resulted from violence, abuse, or neglect by a person whom he/she was 
related or had been in an intimate personal relationship, or a member of the same 
household. For a DHR, BBC may be asked to write a chronology of its involvement or that 
of a contracted agency with the people concerned, completing an information management 

Page 74



Appendix B 

review (IMR) to establish whether opportunities were missed which may have prevented 
the homicide, and any lessons to be learned.  
 
6. BBC ASSURANCE OF OTHER CONTRACTORS – SAFEGUARDING ASSURANCE 
 

a) Key Contractors 
 
BBC contracts Public Sector Partnership Services (PSPS) Ltd to manage some of its 
services. BBC must assure itself of their compliance with safeguarding legislation. In 2018 
this contractor was asked to complete a S11 Compliance Audit by ELDC. This will shortly 
be due for renewal.  
 
b) Contractors/Consultants 
 
BBC is expected to make contractors and consultants aware of its Safeguarding Policy, 
seeking assurance that they comply with safeguarding practices. New contractors are sent 
BBC’s safeguarding policy, asked to read the Policy, and sign a declaration to confirm they 
have read and understood it. They are also asked what safeguarding policies they have in 
place, if any; their lead Safeguarding officer, if they have one; if staff are DBS checked 

and if they would like to attend a Safeguarding briefing session. Safeguarding is included 
in contracts that go out for tender. Potential suppliers are asked if they have policies in 
place or if not, whether they would be prepared to do so if they were awarded the contract. 
 
7. AWARENESS RAISING AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
All 7 District Councils have committed to supporting the LSCP’s awareness raising 
campaigns. The LSCP and LSAB develop and distribute materials to raise awareness with 

staff, Councillors, Town and Parish Councils, businesses and the wider public through its 
existing media channels. During 2020/21 BBC supported a number of campaigns, 
including: Self-Harm Awareness, Child Safety Week, Healthy Relationships, Online Safety 
and National Child Exploitation Awareness Day. 
 
8. RESOURCES AND CAPACITY 
 
All agencies contribute to the costs of the LSCP, including its staff. The District Councils 
pay the smallest amount. No contributions are required from District Councils for LSAB or 
DASMB but there are costs for Domestic Homicide Reviews which are shared amongst 
partners who have a statutory duty for these. 
 
 
b. Officer Capacity 

 
BBC has a number of experienced officers who manage safeguarding issues at strategic 
and operational levels. All Service Managers can access advice on safer recruitment from 
HR and/or safeguarding lead officers, and officers and councillors routinely seek advice 
regarding specific cases. The volume of work is variable as a major case can require a 
significant amount of time for evidence gathering, multi-agency review meetings, report 
writing and implementation of changes. Safeguarding officers continue to receive a varied 
cross-section of referrals and requests for advice. Relevant officers have appropriate 

training to ensure they can support escalation and ensure that the correct advice is given 
in each case. 
 
c. Corporate Safeguarding Group 
 
A Corporate Safeguarding Group with ELDC and BBC officers has been established to 
enable greater corporate ownership and resilience. The group, which meets monthly, has 
a pivotal role in ensuring that safeguarding is effectively managed across the organisation 

Page 75



Appendix B 

and ensure compliance in terms of actions arising from audit and scrutiny of policy, 
procedure and working practices. 
 
 

Page 76



 
CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22 

 

 

MEETING AGENDA ITEMS 
 

PRESENTED OR 
FACILITATED BY 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER (PFH) 

    

6 JULY 2021 
 

1. Contract Arrangements – Fly Tipping Enforcement 
2. Scrutiny Panel Topic – Scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance  

Andy Fisher 
James Gilbert  

Cllr Jonathan Noble  
-  

    

20 JULY 2021  South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership James Gilbert  Cllr Nigel Welton  
    

17 AUG 2021   Community Governance Review Lorraine Bush Cllr Nigel Welton 

    

16 SEPT 2021 
 

 Pilgrim Hospital Operating Model – A debate with representatives 
from the Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group (LCCG) and 
United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust (ULHT) 

Chairman /  
Andy Fisher   

  

Cllr Martin Griggs 
 
 

    

4 NOV 2021 
 

1. Joint BBC-ELDC Scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance – Report by 
the Joint Scrutiny Panel Chairman 

2. Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2022/23 
3. Local Government Association (LGA) Peer Review – Progress 

Update  
4. Annual Review of the Corporate Strategy  

Cllr Judith Skinner 
 

Sharon Hammond 
James Gilbert 

 
“ 

- 
 

Cllr Jonathan Noble 
Cllr Paul Skinner 

 
Cllr Nigel Welton 

    

13 JAN 2022 CANCELLED   
    

17 FEB 2022 1. Budget 2022/23. 
2. Benefits Verification Policy 
3. Cultural Strategy 

Samantha Knowles 
Sharon Hammond 

Lydia Ruisling 

Cllr Jonathan Noble 
Cllr Jonathan Noble 

Cllr Paul Skinner 

    

7 APRIL 2022 
 

1. Civic Support 
2. Joint Scrutiny between Partner Councils 
3. Annual Safeguarding Report 
4. Work Programme inc. Quarter 2 Reporting 

Mark Stinson 
Mark Stinson 

Ian Dunn 
Standing Item 

 

Cllr Nigel Welton 
Cllr Nigel Welton 
Cllr Paul Skinner 

 
 

    

26 MAY 2022 
 

Cultural Strategy – tbc   

    
 

 

 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Q2 Performance 2021/22 – Environment & Performance Committee 

Performance Key 

Performance  Trend 

Achieved or 
exceeded target 

Within an Agreed 
Tolerance 

Outside of Agreed 
Tolerances 

Numbers have 
increased 

Improvement in 
trend or service 

No significant change  
Numbers have 

decreased 

Deterioration in 
trend or service 

       

 

Boston Borough Council KPIs 

Assets Performance 
Latest 
Value 

Target 

ASB001 Percentage of car parking income received against agreed budget L 83.16% 100.00% 

Comment: Ticket sales and permit income combined. Continues to be impacted by Covid-19 and lockdown restrictions. However, there has been an improvement from Q1 
figure which was 63.59% 

ASB002 Percentage of commercial rent received against agreed budget L 91.40% 100.00% 

Comment: Figures include most land and property assets. All of these will be included from Quarter 3 onwards 

Housing and Wellbeing Performance 
Latest 
Value 

Target 

HWB001 Number of properties improved through Council intervention J 56 40 

HWB002 Percentage of cases opened at homelessness prevention stage (i.e. before they have become homeless) L 58.93% 70.00% 

Comment: Figures starting to improve due to measures which have been put in place to improve performance. 

HWB003 
Percentage of homelessness cases that were opened at homelessness prevention stage that resulted in the customer not 
becoming homeless 

J 92.86% 70.00% 

HWB004 Number of verified rough sleepers (quarterly snapshot, verified at street count) L 5 0 

Comment: There were 5 people on the street at the end of September – 2 refusing to engage, 1 passing through, 1 refusing to pay rent or bills and 1 with very specific 
requirements. The new team continue to support them and are achieving positive outcomes. Achieving zero is very challenging but this is the Government’s aim so we are 
trying to achieve this figure. 

HWB005 Number of families with children placed into B&B for more than 6 calendar weeks J 0 0 

Organisation and Corporate Support Performance 
Latest 
Value 

Target 

OCA001 Percentage of Alliance workforce who said 'yes' when asked if they felt valued at work L 73.03% 84.00% 

Comment: Whilst not at target yet, this is a marked improvement from the Q1 return (61.58%) to the Q2 return (73.03%). The Values & Behaviours for the Strategic Alliance 
was launched on 1st July 2021. The development of the shared Values and Behaviours included wide stakeholder engagement across the workforce. Since the launch on 1st 
July, the embedding plan has commenced with activity currently running up to March 2022. We will also look to gather staff engagement data from other local authorities to 
benchmark our results against general employee engagement. 

P
age 79



Boston Borough Council KPIs 

Operations Performance 
Latest 
Value 

Target 

OPB001 Percentage of household waste collected for recycling and composting     39.00% 

Comment: Performance data is not available for the current period. The service is awaiting agreement from the Waste Disposal Authority in relation to changes in how recycling 
performance is measured. 

OPB002 Percentage of recycling collected that is contaminated and unable to be recycled     28.00% 

Comment: Performance data is not available for the current period. The service is awaiting agreement from the Waste Disposal Authority in relation to changes in how recycling 
performance is measured. 

OPB003 Percentage of fly-tips collected within 3 working days of being reported J 97.80% 95.00% 

OPB004 Market stall occupancy rate - percentage occupied against the target       

Comment: Accurate occupancy data for the market has not been available to date, due to the impact of Covid-19 restrictions on the base number. Accurate data will be 
available and reported from Q3. 

Planning Performance 
Latest 
Value 

Target 

PLB001 Percentage of major planning applications determined within 13/16 weeks L 50.00% 65.00% 

PLB002 Percentage of minor planning application determined within 8 weeks L 54.17% 75.00% 

PLB003 Percentage of other planning applications determined within 8 weeks L 70.00% 75.00% 

Comment: These local performance measures exceed the national minimum requirement as they do not include agreed time extensions. In addition, the ongoing changes and 
general workloads within the service will impact on performance in the short term. 
 
Major applications commonly are those which require negotiations, amendments, Committee decisions or legal agreements. Hence a number of the majors going beyond the 
statutory period, but largely these are determined ‘in time’ through longer periods agreed with agents/applicants. Performance against the national measure (including agreed 
time extensions) for major applications in Q2 is 100% against a national target of 60%. 
 
Minor applications – performance against the national measure (including agreed time extensions) in Q2 is 97.92% against a national target of 70%. 
 
Other applications – performance against the national measure (including agreed time extensions) in Q2 is 81.43% against a national target of 70%. 
 

Regulations Performance 
Latest 
Value 

Target 

RGB001 Percentage of food premises inspections completed against the Food Standards Agency annual inspection plan K 98.36% 100.00% 

Comment: With the exception of a small number of fishing vessels which could not be inspected owing to the seasonal nature of their business, Boston is undertaking its food 
safety inspection programme as it did before the start of the pandemic. Unlike most, if not all, other local authorities, Boston has not had to implement the Food Standards 
Agency (FSA) recovery plan to retrieve the food safety inspection programme to where it was before the pandemic. Hence food safety inspections will be reported in the same 
way as before the service was disrupted by the pandemic, rather than against the FSA Recovery Plan. 

P
age 80



Boston Borough Council KPIs 

PSPS Performance 
Latest 
Value 

Target 

PSB001 Time to process new Benefit claims (days) L 22.52 10.00 

Comment: Processing speed is below target, hampered by balancing high workloads and resources, including the diversion of experienced resources to deliver Test and Trace. 
Also, it is due to the work required to clear the backlog of unprocessed records that accumulated prior to PSPS taking over the service. 

PSB002 Time to process Benefit change events (days) J 11.54 14.00 

PSB003 Council Tax collection rate K 52.18% 52.50% 

Comment: Collection is marginally below target but this has been affected by the redirection of resources earlier in the financial year from recovery of unpaid Council Tax to 
the award of Covid Business Grants. 

PSB004 NDR collection rate L 49.64% 56.00% 

Comment: This measure is currently below target but comparisons with targets and previous years are not valid, as the partial removal of Covid related reliefs part way through 
the year has meant that the liability is not distributed evenly throughout the year and is weighted towards the end of the year. A more accurate measure of performance will 
be available for reporting in Q4. 

 

P
age 81



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	B MINUTES
	1 MAYORAL SUPPORT
	Appendix A. Report and Minutes Cabinet 21.02.2018
	Appendix B. Report and Minutes Corporate and Community 04.01.2022

	2 JOINT SCRUTINY BETWEEN PARTNER COUNCILS IN THE SOUTH EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP
	Appendix A. Joint Scrutiny Proposal
	Appendix B. Joint ICT Strategy Scope
	Appendix C. List of Potential Scrutiny Topics

	3 ANNUAL SAFEGUARDING REPORT 2021 - 2022
	Appendix A.
	Appendix B. Safeguarding Activity Summary

	4 WORK PROGRAMME
	Quarter 2 Reporting


